
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Friday 22 January 2021 
 

Audit Committee 
 

Monday 1 February 2021, 2.00 pm 
 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Alan Tyson (Chair) Councillor Mary Bainbridge (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Carole Armstrong Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours 
Councillor Vaughan Hodgson Councillor Janet King 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride  
 

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™ Channel.  
 

If you have any questions or queries contact Lee Jardine on 01900 702502. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 
2020 

  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  



5. Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 31 December 
2020  (Pages 9 - 78) 

 

6. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update  (Pages 79 - 100) 
 

 

 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Thursday 25 February 2021, 2.00 pm 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 
 



At a meeting of the Audit Committee held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Tuesday 24 
November 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Alan Tyson (Chair) Councillor Mary Bainbridge (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours Councillor Janet King 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride  
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Carole Armstrong and Councillor 
Vaughan Hodgson 
 
Staff Present 
 
L Jardine, B Lennox, C Nicholson and S Sewell 
 
Also Present 
 
R Anderson and G Kelly 
 
193. Minutes  

 
Councillor Campbell-Savours asked a question over the accuracy of Minute 143 
– which refereed to minute 78. 
 
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that a written response was not provided but 
that a meeting was held with Councillor Campbell-Savours and the S151 officer. 
 
The minutes of the meeting held 29 September 2020 were signed as a correct 
record. 
 

194. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

195. Questions  
 
None received 
 

196. Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 30 September 
2020  
 
The Assurance, Risk and Audit (ARA) Officer presented the Assurance, Risk 
and Audit Report for the Quarter ending 30 September 2020.  
 
Members were advised that the 78% performance percentage is above target of 
73.12%, despite supporting additional work due to Covid-19. Due however to a 
vacant manager post and an internal secondment to another department the 
Audit team has lost a considerable amount of days.  
 
Due to the reduction in days members were advised that following assurance 
reviews will not be completed in 2020/21. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 Risk Management  

 Ethics and Culture  

 GDPR 
 
The decision to not complete the above was made following a risk-based 
approach. Both the Risk Management and Ethics and Culture were also not 
scheduled to be full reviews. 
 
The assurance activities for the quarter focused on the completion of the 
Financial Services and Ethics and Culture reviews. It was clarified to members 
that although the Corporate Risk Management and Risk Management 
Facilitation does not sit with the ARA Team, members will be provided with the 
same updates when necessary. 
 
Members were advised the situation in relation to the implementation of agreed 
actions. Following the publication of the report the Finance and Procurement 
actions had been completed and the Economic Growth deadline had been 
extended to the end of Quarter 3. No progress however has been made on the 
Development Services and Asset Management actions. Members expressed 
concerns over the outstanding actions and updates will be provided to members 
by the relevant Head of Service. Going forward if responses are not provided to 
members the Chair of Audit (in consultation with the ARA officer and Head of 
Governance and Regulatory Services) will invite relevant officers to attend the 
Audit Committee. 
 
Members noted the reduced resources within the audit function and asked for 
an update. In response the Head of Governance and Regulatory Services 
advised that amendments have been made to the audit plan and that additional 
internal support will be provided by the Governance Support Assistants in 
addition to the existing external IT audit. Members were also advised that the 
ARA Manager vacancy would be going out to recruitment and that the ARA 
Officer will begin studying for the Certified Internal Audit Qualification. 
 
The ARA Officer then provided members with an update of the amended 
Assurance, Risk and Audit Plan for 2020/21.  
 
Agreed 
 
Members noted the contents of the report and accepted the amended 
Assurance, Risk and Audit Plan for 2020/21. 
 

197. Annual Governance Statement 2019/20  
 
In July 2020 members approved the draft Annual Governance Statement and 
the Monitoring Officer presented the final statement for approval. Following 
officer discussions with Grant Thornton LLP several changes were made which 
were reported to members. 
 
Paragraphs 4.26 and 4.27 provide more detail around the Corporate Peer 
Challenges setting out the Councils response to the actions from the Peer 
Review  

Page 4



 
Paragraphs 4.28 and 4.29 provide more detail around the Governance Review 
undertaken by the Centre for Public Scrutiny and the work currently being 
undertaken to deliver the actions 
 
Paragraphs 5.4 and 5.5 provide more information in relation to the Governance 
arrangements for the Allerdale Investment Partnership and Allerdale Waste 
Services  
 
Paragraphs 5.10 confirms that the Council has the appropriate systems and 
processes in place to ensure good governance is maintained.  
 
Paragraph 6 sets out an action plan for the areas of improvement and 
significant governance issues identified. 
 
Following questions, the Monitoring Officer confirmed that members would be 
kept up to date with the action plan and any issues resulting from the Annual 
Governance Statement. 
 
Councillor Tyson moved the motion to approve the Annual Governance 
Statement, the motion was seconded by Councillor Campbell – Savours, all 
members agreed. 
 
Agreed 
 
That the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement be approved. 
 

198. Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented the ‘Treasury Management 
Operations’ mid-year review.  
 
The report summarised the following. 
 

 an update on the economic environment  

 updated interest rate forecasts 

 interest rate movements during the period  

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS), Investment Strategy 
and 
Borrowing Strategy updates  

 a review of the Council’s investment and borrowing activities during the 
period 1 April to 30 September 2020  

 a review of compliance with the Council’s treasury and prudential 
indicators 
for 2020-21. 
 

Members were advised that during April 2020, the amount of funding paid to the 
Authority as part of central government’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic 
meant it was not possible to place those funds with institutions on the Council’s 
list of approved counterparties without breaching the approved counterparty 
limit with one or more of those institutions. This required temporary suspension 

Page 5



of the Authority’s £12m counterparty limit on deposits placed with the Debt 
Management Office during the period 1 to 7 April. 
 
Members were also advised of the impact of Covid-19 and Brexit on the UK and 
World economies including interest rates and borrowing rates. 
 
Councillor Campbell-Savours asked questions in relation to the key indicators 
the committee should monitor. In response the Financial Services Manager 
advised that it is not advisable to pick specific indicators but to focus on the 
wider picture, one of the key indicators however is affordability, and to be in 
mindful of the amount on future capital expenditure which is met from 
borrowing. 
 
Councillor Campbell Savours then asked further questions in relation to risk and 
risks associated with the capital programme. In response the S151 officer 
advised that the Council has no immediate concerns but that acknowledged that 
the Council needs to address medium to long term budget gaps. 
 
Agreed 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 Prior to agenda item 8, Councillor Campbell-Savours moved the 
following procedural motion. 
 
Under section 4.20.10.f of the council constitution the meeting is adjourned, 
this is to provide members with more time to review the background papers 
(for items 8, 9 and 10). 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Bainbridge, the Chair accepted the 
motion and all members agreed. 

  
 Meeting adjourned 15:05pm   
  
 Meeting reconvened 10am, 26 November 2020   
  
199. Audited Statement of Accounts 2019/20  

 
The Financial Services Manager submitted the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts 
for consideration and approval. 
 
Members were advised that due to Covid-19, the statutory deadline to publish 
the statement of accounts has been put delayed until 30 November 2020 
 
The accounts must be reviewed by the Section 151 officer and that if the 
Statement of Accounts were approved by members, Grant Thornton could issue 
their opinion.  
 
The Financial Services Manager delivered a presentation to members on the 
Statement of Account, the presentation included, 
 

 The Narrative Report 

Page 6



 Accounting Policies 

 Single Entity Financial Statements 

 Collection Fund and Group Accounts 

 Changes to Unaudited Statements 
 
The Financial Services Manager then answered questions from members in 
relation to the income and expenditure account, balance sheets, risks, NNDR 
and climate change. 
 
In relation to risk and uncertainty, to support members going forward officers 
also agreed to send the corporate risk register when reviewing the statement of 
accounts. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 be approved. 
 

200. Audit Findings Report  
 
Grant Thornton submitted a findings report highlighting the key matters arising 
from the audit of the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2020. 
 
Gareth Kelly (Grant Thornton LLP) provided a high-level introduction to the 
report providing an overview of the key findings including 
 

 Financial Statements 

 Value for Money 

 Statutory Duties 

 Covid-19 
 
Members were advised that due to covid-19 the audit has taken place remotely, 
due to this and several covid-19 related factors, the audit cost to the council has 
increased. 
 
Richard Anderson (Grant Thornton LLP) then provided a more detailed account 
of the report including significant risks, including the risks associated to Covid-
19, the significant findings from the group audit and financial sustainability. 
 
Members were advised of the recommendations made following the audit in 
relation to financial sustainability and major projects and procurement.  
 
Members asked questions in relation to value for money, risks associated with 
capital projects and financial savings. It was advised to members that potential 
savings are being considered by Allerdale Waste Services and proposals will be 
going to the AWS shareholder committee prior to public consultation as part of 
the budget consultation for 2021/22. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 
 

201. Letter of Representation 2019/20  
 

Page 7



The Head of Financial Services presented to members the Letter of 
Representation, made in connection with the audit of the council’s 2019/20 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
Members approved the Letter of Representation. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Letter of Representation 2019/20 be approved 
 

The meeting closed at 12.25 pm, 26 November 2020 
 

Page 8



 Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Audit Committee Meeting 1 February 2021 
 

Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 31 December 2020 

  
The Reason for the Decision To inform the Committee of the work performed 

by the Assurance, Risk and Audit Team in the 
third quarter of the financial year 2020/21. 

  
Summary of options considered  N/A  
  

Recommendations 1. That the report is accepted subject to any 
additional information that the committee 
may require. 

2. That the committee consider the annual 
Public Sector Internal Auditing standards 
self-assessment. 

  
Financial / Resource Implications As outlined in the report. 
  
Legal Implications Acceptance of this report has no legal 

implications. 
  
Community Safety Implications Acceptance of this report has no community 

safety implications. 
  
Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications 

Acceptance of this report has no Health and 
Safety implications. Consideration should be 
given to the activities reported and how they 
contribute to the organisations Risk Management 
Framework. 

  
Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed 

Equality is considered during the Assurance, Risk 
and Audit activities. 

  
Wards Affected All. 
  
The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities 

Acceptance of the Assurance, Risk and Audit 
Team’s work provides a direct and indirect 
contribution to the achievement of the Council’s 
priorities, in accordance with the Assurance, Risk 
and Audit Service Plan. 

  
Is this a Key Decision No 
  
Portfolio Holder Councillor Jim Lister 

jim.lister@allerdale.gov.uk 
  
Lead Officer Paula McKenzie, Assurance, Risk and Audit 

Officer. 01900 702987 
paula.mckenzie@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

 
Report Implications (Please delete where applicable). 
 
Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N 

Financial  N Employment (internal) Y 

Legal N Partnership N 

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N 

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N 

 
Background papers: Assurance, Risk and Audit reports and working papers. 
 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 This is the third progress report for the financial year 2020/21. 
 
1.2 Items covered in this report are as follows: 
 

 Performance against the 20/21 plan 

 Assurance and consultancy activities during the quarter 

 Fraud work 

  Assurance, Risk and Audit activity performance,  

 Quality Assurance and Improvement Program 

 Agreed Action follow up, and 

 Training and staffing. 
 
2 Performance against the 2020/21 Audit Plan 
 
2.1 Time Summary  
 

Activity Planned 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Statutory Assurance Reviews 100 4.76 

Assurance and Risk Support 4 2.23 

Follow up and performance 13 7.64 

Completion of 2019/20 reviews 15 26.86 

Assurance Reviews 13 0.14 

Democratic Representation 22 9.46 

Corporate Support 86 106.39 

Projects incl Covid 19 work 41 60.03 

Peer Review 4 0.17 

Advice  5 0 

Investigations 5 0 

Fraud Activities 17 9.29 

Risk Management Facilitation 9 6.49 

Total Audit Time 334 233.46 

Hub Management 87 45.68 

Total Chargeable Audit time 421 279.14 

Non-Chargeable   
Page 10



Non chargeable time 27 37.09 

Training 27 11.66 

Sickness / other absences 16 4.68 

   

Total Non-Chargeable Time 70 53.43 

   

   

Annual Leave 117.5 47.56 

   

Total Days available  608.5 380.13 

 
2.2 The cumulative performance up to quarter three is 73.43% (total chargeable 

time/total days) slightly below the planned target of 73.72%. This is still 
considered an excellent achievement based on challenges faced within the team 
during this period, including annual leave over the Christmas period and the team 
remaining under resourced in quarter three.  

 
2.3 The ARA Officer has completed the annual PSIAS self-assessment which is 

being presented to the Audit Committee for consideration. This document 
provides the Committee an overview of compliance for Internal Audit Services at 
Allerdale Borough Council. See appendix one. 

 
3         Assurance and Consultancy Activities 
 
3.1 The assurance activities for this quarter focused on the completion of the 

Financial Services 19/20 and Ethics and Culture reviews 19/20, the Allerdale 
Waste Services, Finance 20/21 and ICT reviews are also in progress. 

 
3.2     The following reports were submitted this quarter and can be found in appendix 

two and three to this report: 
 

 Financial Services 19/20 

 Ethics and Culture 19/20 
 
4 Corporate Fraud 
 
4.1     The National Fraud Initiative requires annual data to support the early 

identification of fraud. The timetable for completion of the actions and reminder 
emails were circulated to all responsible officers for delivery of their specified 
data sets. This year seen the need for additional data sets for a separate 
exercise and also grant information adding additional work load to the 
responsible officers. The team worked hard to submit their data sets. Only one 
data set was submitted on 4 January 2021, after the deadline of the 1 December 
2020, an explanation has been submitted to the NFI on Allerdales behalf. Thank 
you to all the responsible officers for your work on submissions. 

 
4.2     The ARA Officer has been supporting the grants teams with fraud work. One 

suspected fraud was identified which crossed local authority boundaries. This 
was forwarded to all necessary parties. 

 
5      Progress with the Annual Plan 
 

Page 11



5.1     The following reviews were in progress at 31 December 2020: 
 

Audit Title Status  

Financial Services Testing 

ICT Testing 

Allerdale Waste Services SCE 

 
5.2 Management’s acceptance of recommendations - 100% 
 

ARA is designed to add value and assist management in achieving the 
organisations overall key aims and objectives. After follow up following the 
quarter ending 31 December 2020, zero actions were overdue, this is an 
excellent achievement by both the responsible officers and Heads of Service, 
who have prioritised reducing the number outstanding agreed actions. ARA 
follow up activity quarterly however the responsibility of implementation lies with 
management. 

6 Quality Assurance and Improvement Program (QAIP) 
  
6.1     Professional Training and Development has been on hold during this quarter due 

to pandemic restrictions, the prioritisation of Covid 19 work and redeployment of 
resources. However the Assurance Risk and Audit Officer had approval to further 
her professional studies to achieve Certified Internal Auditor status, the learning 
programme was set to commence in April 2020, this will hopefully commence 
once virtual learning is agreed. This will build further resilience into the team and 
is an excellent example of commitment to the profession. 

 
7 Risk Management 
 
7.1   The Corporate Risk Register is published as part of the Performance Reports to 

Executive and can be found at the link below; 
 
Performance 

   
8 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible 
 
8.1 Assurance, Risk and Audit operates in support of other Council services. 
 
9 Finance and or Resource Implications 
 
9.1 There are currently no finance or additional resource issues that have not already 

been included in the report. 
 
10 Legal Implications and Risks 
 
10.1  Acceptance of this report has no legal, health and safety or risk management   

implications other than the consideration of the Corporate Risks and Issues Log 
by the Committee in terms of oversight of the effectiveness of Risk Management 
Framework. 

 
11 Recommendations 
 

Page 12

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/performance/


 1. That the report is accepted subject to any additional information that the 
committee may require. 

 
2. That the committee consider the annual Public Sector Internal Auditing 
standards self-assessment. 

 
  
  
 

 
Paula McKenzie 

Assurance, Risk and Audit Officer 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

1  
  

1   Definition of Internal Auditing                   

   Using evidence gained from 
assessing conformance with 
other Standards, is the internal 
audit activity:   

a) Independent?   
b) Objective?   

   

   
    

      Yes see the Audit Charter, Strategic Plan and 
Annual Governance Statement 2020/21. 

 
Audit Charter 20 
Strat Plan 20_21 
AGS 1920 

    

   Using evidence gained from assessing 
conformance with other Standards, does the 
internal audit activity use a systematic and 
disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance 
processes within the organisation?   

   

   
    

      There is a standard methodology in place for 
determining the ranking of opinions and rankings 
of findings/recommendations in all audit reports. 
 
RISK/Control matrixes are used to identify key 
areas prior to the start of each audit. 
 
The council has an Integrated Assurance Strategy 
and Assurance Risk and Audit Strategy. 
 
The internal audit team use standardised working 
papers and audit report templates. 
 
IAS 
Procedures and Report Temp 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

P
age 15

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/A0963E03-3892-49AC-A5D1-A754CE1157DD?tenantId=a10953b6-7233-4b77-b858-e13f522d29c8&fileType=docx&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2FThe%20Internal%20Audit%20Charter%2020.docx&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:d319eadbc82444f184306e18e10cbfbb@thread.skype&groupId=23f96750-3f77-4bf6-af31-a8671393b0b5
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/D1B8598B-656A-4C3B-B1BF-0681CEF56DB5?tenantId=a10953b6-7233-4b77-b858-e13f522d29c8&fileType=doc&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2Fstrategic%20plan%2020-21.doc&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:d319eadbc82444f184306e18e10cbfbb@thread.skype&groupId=23f96750-3f77-4bf6-af31-a8671393b0b5
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/907DEB46-D70D-4643-B060-47B2F36231F3?tenantId=a10953b6-7233-4b77-b858-e13f522d29c8&fileType=pdf&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2FAppendix%201%20AGS%20_1920.doc_.pdf&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:d319eadbc82444f184306e18e10cbfbb@thread.skype&groupId=23f96750-3f77-4bf6-af31-a8671393b0b5
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/F2C83E08-E19A-4514-8B38-16AE0CDA45EC?tenantId=a10953b6-7233-4b77-b858-e13f522d29c8&fileType=doc&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2FIntegrated%20Assurance%20Strategy_2020%20Final.doc&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fallerdalebc.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FAssuranceRiskandAudit83&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:d319eadbc82444f184306e18e10cbfbb@thread.skype&groupId=23f96750-3f77-4bf6-af31-a8671393b0b5
file:///C:/Users/paula.mckenzie/Allerdale%20Borough%20Council/Audit%20Shared%20Drive%20-%20General/Internal%20Audit%20Related/Section%20Administration/Audit%20Procedures/Internal%20Audit%20Procedures/ARA%20Procedures%20current/Appendix%20C%20Report%20template.docx


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

2  
  

2   Code of Ethics                   

   Integrity   
Using evidence gained from assessing 
conformance with other Standards, do internal 
auditors:   
a) Perform their work with honesty, 
 diligence and responsibility?   
b) Observe the law and make disclosures 
 expected by the law and the profession?   
c) Not knowingly partake in any illegal 
 activity nor engage in acts that are 
 discreditable to the profession of 
 internal auditing or to the Organisation?  
d) Respect and contribute to the  legitimate 
 and ethical objectives of the organisation?   

   

   
    

      a) Auditors are bound by their ethical standards 
both in the Internal Audit Charter / Code of Ethics 
and with their own professional bodies, i.e. IIA.  
Elements such as these are a requirement of the 
role and, as such, are referred to in the job 
description and are reviewed quarterly via the 
council’s performance appraisal process. 
b) Auditors are required to complete annual 
declaration of interest forms.  
c) Auditors are bound by their professional ethical 
standards and the Code of Ethics within the 
Internal Audit Charter. 
d) In addition to being bound by professional 
ethical standards and the Code of Ethics within 
the Internal Audit Charter, internal audit also 
complies with the council’s Employee Code of 
Conduct Policy. 
 
PSIAS 
Job Descriptions 
Decs of Ints 
Code of Conduct 
 
 

    

P
age 16

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/641252/PSAIS_1_April_2017.pdf
file:///C:/Users/paula.mckenzie/Allerdale%20Borough%20Council/Audit%20Shared%20Drive%20-%20General/Internal%20Audit%20Related/Section%20Administration/Job%20Descriptions
file:///C:/Users/paula.mckenzie/Allerdale%20Borough%20Council/Audit%20Shared%20Drive%20-%20General/Internal%20Audit%20Related/Section%20Administration/Declaration%20of%20Interest
https://allerdalegovuk.workplace.com/search/top/?q=employees%20code%20of%20conduct&__tsid__=0.6003736894035327&__epa__=SEARCH_BOX


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

3  
  

   Objectivity   
Using evidence gained from assessing 
conformance with other Standards, do internal 
auditors display objectivity by not:   
a) Taking part in any activity or relationship 
 that may impair or be presumed to impair 
 their unbiased assessment?   
b) Accepting anything that may impair or be 
 presumed to impair their professional 
 judgement?   
c) Disclosing all material facts known to 
 them that, if not disclosed, may distort  the 
 reporting of activities under review?   

   

   
    
   

      a) Compliance with Audit Charter/Code of Ethics, 
completion of annual declarations of interests. 
Audit are required from time to time to get 
involved/give advice on new systems/new 
controls etc. They ensure management reviews 
are independent. 
b) Compliance with the Audit Charter/Code of 
Ethics.  Declaring any gifts and hospitality for 
inclusion on the council’s register. Completion of 
annual declarations of interests. 

c) Compliance with the Audit Charter/Code of 

Ethics.  Declaring any gifts and hospitality for 
inclusion on the council’s register.  Completion of 
annual declarations of interests. Compliance with 
Employee Code of Conduct and council’s 
competency framework. 

    

   Confidentiality   
Using evidence gained from assessing 
conformance with other Standards, do internal 
auditors display objectivity by:   
a) Acting prudently when using information 
 acquired in the course of their duties and 
 protecting that information?   
b) Not using information for any personal gain 
 or in any manner that would be contrary to 
 the law or detrimental to the legitimate and 
 ethical objectives of the organisation?   

   

   
    

      a) Compliance with Audit Charter/Code of 
Conduct and Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. The Audit review process undertaken 
by the Manager (CAE) and or Assurance Risk and 
Audit Officer includes a review of the information 
used for testing and how it was processed.   
Understanding of the Data Protection Act and 
GDPR. 
b) Compliance to the Audit Charter/Code of Ethics 
and the auditors own professional standards. 
 

    

P
age 17



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

4  
  

 Competency   
Using evidence gained from assessing 
conformance with other Standards, do internal 
auditors display objectivity by:   
a) Only carrying out services for which they 
 have the necessary knowledge, skills and 
 experience?   
b) Performing services in accordance with the 
 PSIAS?   
c) Continually improving their proficiency and 
 effectiveness and quality of their services, 
 for example through CPD schemes? 
 

   a) The ARA Officer is IIA Cert and AAT level 2 
qualified and therefore has the experience and 
skills to carry out the required audits. ARAO is due 
to start the CIA qualification in April 2021. AR 
Auditor is NVQ level 3 accountancy, business 
admin level 4 and CMI Management and 
Leadership level 5. 
b) The team have been supplied with a copy of 
Audit Charter/Code of Ethics and the PSIAS and 
performance is regularly assessed. 
c) Work related objectives are agreed in advance 
as part of the WGLL performance review.  Staff 
are encouraged to maintain records of continuing 
professional development to satisfy their 
professional membership requirements. Regular 
attendance at the audit events including autumn 
seminar and audit weekend school. 
 
WGLL temp 
 

    

 Do internal auditors have regard to the 
Standards of Public Life’s Seven Principles of 
Public Life?   

   A copy of the Internal Audit Charter and the local 
code of corporate governance is available for all 
team members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

P
age 18

file:///C:/Users/paula.mckenzie/Allerdale%20Borough%20Council/Audit%20Shared%20Drive%20-%20General/Corporate%20Issues/whatgreatlookslike/What%20Great%20Looks%20Like%20Annual%20Record-meetingexample.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

5  
  

   Standards                   

3   Attribute Standards                   

3.1   1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility                   

   Does the internal audit charter 

include a formal definition of:  

 a) the purpose  

b) the authority, and   
c) the responsibility  
of the internal audit activity consistent with 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS)?   

 

   

   
    

      The Audit Charter includes a definition in 
accordance with the PSIAS. 

    

 
LGA
N 

Does the internal audit charter define the terms 
‘board’ and ‘senior management’, for the 
purposes of the internal audit activity?   
Note that it is expected that the audit committee 
will fulfil the role of the board in the majority of 
instances.   

   

   
    

      The Audit Charter defines the ‘board’ as the Audit 
Committee and ‘Senior Management’ as the 
Senior Management Team. 

    

 
 
 
 
 
LG
AN 
 
 
 
LG
AN 

 
 

Does the internal audit charter also:   
a) Set out the internal audit activity’s 
 position within the organisation?   
b) Establish the CAE’s functional reporting 
 relationship with the board?   
c) Establish the accountability, reporting 
 line and relationship between the CAE 
 and those to whom the CAE may report 
 administratively?   

d) Establish the responsibility of the board 
and also the role of the statutory officers 
(such as the CFO, the monitoring officer 
and the head of paid service) with      
regards to internal audit?   



































  See Audit Charter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

P
age 19



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

6  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
LG
AN 
 
LG
AN 
 
 

 
LGA
N 

e) Establish internal audit’s right of access to 
all records, assets, personnel and 
premises and its authority to obtain such 
information and explanations as it 
considers necessary to fulfil its 
responsibilities?  

f) Define the scope of internal audit 
activities?   

g) Recognise that internal audit’s remit 
extends to the entire control environment 
of the organisation?   

h) Identify internal audit’s contribution to the 
review of effectiveness of the control 
environment, as set out in the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2011?   

i) Establish the organisational independence 
of internal audit?   

j) Cover the arrangements for appropriate 
resourcing?   

k) Define the role of internal audit in any 
fraud-related work?   

l) Set out the existing arrangements within 
the organisation’s anti-fraud and anti-
corruption policies, to be notified of all 
suspected or detected fraud, corruption or 
impropriety?   

m) Include arrangements for avoiding conflicts 
of interest if internal audit undertakes non-
audit activities?   

n) Define the nature of assurance services 
provided to the organisation, as well as 
assurances provided to parties external to 
the organisation?  

o)  Define the nature of consulting services?   
p) Recognise the mandatory nature of the 

PSIAS? 

















































































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
 

P
age 20



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

7  
  

 Does the chief audit executive (CAE) periodically 
review the internal audit charter and present it 
to senior management and the board for 
approval?   

   Reviewed June 2020 by the ARA Officer CAE 
approves. 

    

 Does the CAE attend audit committee meetings    Yes, see minutes of Audit Committee indicating 
attendees. 
 
Audit meetings 
 

    

 Does the CAE contribute to audit committee 
agendas?   

   See minutes of Audit Committee.     

3.2   1100 Independence and Objectivity           

 Does the CAE have direct and unrestricted access 
to senior management and the board 

   Yes on request, this used to include 6 monthly risk  
Workshops however Corporate Risk now sits with 
the Hub Manager which includes the risk 
workshops, the officer intends to attend these and 
meetings will be set up between the CAE and  
SMT as required. 

    

 Does the CAE have free and unfettered access to, 
as well as communicate effectively with, the chief 
executive or equivalent and the chair of the audit 
committee?   

    Access rights and reporting lines are documented 
in the Audit Charter. The Chairman of the Audit 
Committee attends regular pre-meeting briefings. 
Chair meets CAE where required. 

    

 Are threats to objectivity identified and 
managed at the following levels:   
a) Individual auditor?   
b) Engagement?   
c) Functional?   
d) Organisation?   

   a) Audit staff complete a declaration of interests 
annually.  

b) The ARA Manager (CAE) will consider any 
threats to objectivity at the start of each audit. 

c) Internal Audit would if required protect its 
independence and objectivity by auditor 
allocation. 

    

P
age 21

http://abcmodgov2.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=44&Year=0


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

8  
  

 1110 Organisational Independence   


       

 Does the CAE report to an organisational 
level equal or higher to the corporate 
management team?   



  The CAE reports directly to the Chief Officer of 
Place & Governance. 

    

LGA
N 

Does the CAE report to a level within the 
organisation that allows the internal audit 
activity to fulfil its responsibilities?   



  The CAE reports directly to the Chief Officer of 
Place & Governance. (Monitoring Officer) who 
attends the Senior Management Team meetings. 

    

LGA
N   

Have reporting and management arrangements 
been put in place that preserve the CAE’s 
independence and objectivity?   
This is of particular importance when the CAE is 
line managed by another officer of the authority.   

  

      The CAE meets the audit committee chair 
privately prior to every meeting. 

    

LGA
N 

Does the CAE’s position in the management 
structure:   
a) Reflect the influence he or she has on the 
 control environment?   
b) Provide the CAE with sufficient status to 
 ensure that audit plans, reports and action 
 plans are discussed effectively with the 
 board?   
c) Ensure that he or she is sufficiently senior 
 and independent to be able to provide 
 credibly constructive challenge to senior 
 management?   



  Reports to Chief Officer of Place & Governance 
and has access to Senior Management and 
members as required. 

    

P
age 22



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

9  
  

 Does the CAE confirm to the board, at least 
annually, that the internal audit activity is 
organisationally independent?   
The following examples can be used by the CAE 
when assessing the organisational 
independence of the internal audit activity:  
The board:   

a) approves the internal audit charter   
b) approves the risk-based audit plan   
c) approves the internal audit budget and 
 resource plan   
d) receives communications from the CAE 
 on the activity’s performance (in 
 relation to the plan, for example)   

e) approves decisions relating to the 
 appointment and removal of the CAE   
f) seeks reassurance from management  and 
the CAE as to whether there are any 
 inappropriate scope or resource 
 limitations.   

  

   
    

  
 
 
 
   

  

  



   

 
 
   


   
   

 

   
   
   

  
   

   
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Audit charter 
 
 
 
The audit committee address organisational 
independence in the ways described. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appointment of the CAE is an operational 
decision. 

    

 Does the chief executive or equivalent 
undertake, countersign, contribute feedback to 
or review the performance appraisal of the CAE?   

   No this is completed by the Chief Officer of Place 
& Governance, who would request feedback form 
the CEO where required. 

    

 Is feedback sought from the chair of the audit 
committee for the CAE’s performance appraisal 

   Feedback opportunities on a 121 basis at every 
pre meeting – 4/6 per year. 

    

 1111 Direct Interaction with the Board                 

 Does the CAE communicate and interact directly 
with the board?   

   The CAE attends a pre-audit meeting with the 
Chair of the Audit Committee and also attends 
all Audit Committee Meetings. 

 

 

    

P
age 23



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

10  
  

 1120 Individual Objectivity           

 Do internal auditors have an impartial, unbiased 
attitude?           Feedback questions sent after each audit are 

used to monitor the auditors approach. 
    

 Do internal auditors avoid any conflict of 
interest, whether apparent or actual?   

  

      Auditors will complete annual declaration of 
interests.  Compliance with the Internal Audit 
Charter/Code of Ethics. Audit team are aware that 
they need to report any suspected conflicts of 
interests if they arise during an audit review.  

 

    

 1130 Impairment to Independence or Objectivity        

 If there has been any real or apparent 
impairment of independence or objectivity, has 
this been disclosed to appropriate parties 
(depending on the nature of the impairment 
and the relationship between the CAE and 
senior management/the board as set out in the 
internal audit charter)?   

N/A N/A N/A There has been no impairment of independence 
or objectivity. 
 

    

 Have internal auditors assessed specific 
operations for which they have been responsible 
within the previous year?   

N/A N/A N/A      

 If there have been any assurance engagements 
in areas over which the CAE also has operational 
responsibility, have these engagements been 
overseen by someone outside of the internal 
audit activity?   

N/A  

 
 

N/A   

 
 

N/A   

     

LGA
N 

Are assignments for ongoing assurance 
engagements and other audit responsibilities 
rotated periodically within the internal audit 
team?   

       Due to the size of the audit team this is not always 
achievable.  

    

 

P
age 24



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

11  
  

   
LGAN  

Have internal auditors declared interests in 
accordance with organisational requirements?   

        The Assurance Risk and Audit team all complete 
an annual declaration of interests form. 
Staff are provided with the Internal Audit 
Charter/Code of Ethics.  

    

LGAN   Where any internal auditor has accepted any 
gifts, hospitality, inducements or other 
benefits from employees, clients, suppliers or 
other third parties (other than as may be 
allowed by the organisation’s own policies), 
has this been declared and investigated fully?   

  

      There have been no declarations of gifts and 
hospitality received. 
Audit staff are reminded annually of the 
council’s procedures in respect of receiving 
gifts and hospitality. 

    

LGAN   Have any instances been discovered where an 
internal auditor has used information obtained 
during the course of duties for personal gain?   

  
   

  
There have been no instances where an auditor 
has used information obtained during the 
course of duties for personal gain. 

    

LGAN   Have internal auditors disclosed all material 
facts known to them which, if not disclosed, 
could distort their reports or conceal unlawful 
practice, subject to any confidentiality 
agreements?   

  

      See declaration of interest.     

LGAN   Have internal auditors complied with the 
Bribery Act 2010?   

  

      Audit team aware of the counter corruption 
framework this was reviewed, updated and 
presented to Audit Committee November 2019. 
 
 

      

 If there has been any real or apparent 
impairment of independence or objectivity 
relating to a proposed consulting services 
engagement, was this disclosed to the 
engagement client before the engagement 
was accepted?   

N/A N/A N/A 
 
 
 

The council’s Internal Audit Team has not 
provided consultancy work for areas where 
there was an impairment of objectivity. 

    

 Where there have been significant additional 
consulting services agreed during the year that 
were not already included in the audit plan, 

   
 
 
 

Days spent on advice and consultancy within 
budget agreed by audit committee. 

    

P
age 25



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

12  
  

was approval sought from the board before the 
engagement was accepted?   
 

3.3   1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care           

 1210 Proficiency           

 Does the CAE hold a professional qualification, 
such as CMIIA/CCAB or equivalent?   

  

      The CAE role is currently vacant, the ARAO has 
been covering the additional duties. 

 
 

    

 Is the CAE suitably experienced?           The ARAO has 6 years’ experience in Public 
Sector Internal Audit including IIA Cert and AAT 
level 2 qualified, due to take CIA in April 2021. 

    

LGAN   Is the CAE responsible for recruiting appropriate 
internal audit staff, in accordance with the 
organisation’s human resources processes?   

          Partly, currently the Head of Service is taking 
responsibility for recruitment. 

    

LGAN   Does the CAE ensure that up-to-date job 
descriptions exist that reflect roles and 
responsibilities and that person specifications 
define the required qualifications, 
competencies, skills, experience and personal 
attributes?   

        Updated as part of the Governance restructure 
August 2015 and a new JD wrote for the change 
of Assistant role to Auditor. 

    

 Does the internal audit activity collectively 
possess or obtain the skills, knowledge and 
other competencies required to perform its 
responsibilities?   

  

      The ARA Officer is AAT level 2 and IIA Cert 
qualified. Commencing professional studies for 
Certified Internal Auditor status in 2021. The 
ARAA is due to study for the IIA apprenticeship 
in 2021 also. 

    

 Where the internal audit activity does not 
possess the skills, knowledge and other 
competencies required to perform its 
responsibilities, does the CAE obtain 
competent advice and assistance?   

   External specialist ICT audit support has been 
commissioned via Merseyside Internal Audit 
Agency.  

    

P
age 26



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

13  
  

 Do internal auditors have sufficient 
knowledge to evaluate the risk of fraud and 
anti-fraud arrangements in the organisation?     

       No specific fraud training but competent in 
providing assurance over the controls for the 
management of fraud risks. New mandatory 
module for all employees as part for the e-
learning system. 

    

 Do internal auditors have sufficient 
knowledge of key information technology 
risks and controls?   

 
      The ARAO covered a module in the IIA cert and 

external support engaged via MIIA. 
    

 Do internal auditors have sufficient 
knowledge of the appropriate computer 
assisted audit techniques that are available 
to them to perform their work, including 
data analysis techniques?   

N/A N/A N/A No CAATS     

 1220 Due Professional Care           

 Do internal auditors exercise due 
professional care by considering the: 
  a) Extent of work needed to achieve 
 the engagement’s objectives?   
b) Relative complexity, materiality or 
 significance of matters to which assurance 
 procedures are applied?   
c) Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, 
 risk management and control processes?   
d) Probability of significant errors, fraud, or 
 non-compliance?   
e) Cost of assurance in relation to potential 
 benefits?   

        The Audit Strategy detailing how this is  
achieved is agreed at Audit Committee. 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

          

 Do internal auditors exercise due professional 
care during a consulting engagement by 
considering the:   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements of this extent 
planned at present 

 

    

P
age 27



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

14  
  

a) Needs and expectations of clients, including 
 the nature, timing and communication of 
 engagement results?   
b) Relative complexity and extent of work 
 needed to achieve the engagement’s 
 objectives?   
c) Cost of the consulting engagement in 
 relation to potential benefits?   

 1230 Continuing Professional Development           

LGAN   Has the CAE defined the skills and 
competencies for each level of auditor?           

Job Descriptions and task matrix.     

LGAN   Does the CAE periodically assess individual 
auditors against the predetermined skills and 
competencies?   

  
      Quarterly reviews completed using the What 

Great Looks Like Behaviours Framework. 
    

 Do internal auditors undertake a programme of 
continuing professional development?           Yes when required.      

 Do internal auditors maintain a record of their 
professional development and training 
activities?   

  
      Full record of CPD and training maintained. 

 
 

    

3.4   1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme        

   Has the CAE developed a Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) that covers all 
aspects of the internal audit activity and 
enables conformance with all aspects of the 
PSIAS to be evaluated?   

  

      QAIP reported quarterly in Audit Committee 
performance report. 
 
 

 

    

 Does the QAIP assess the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the internal audit activity and 
identify opportunities for improvement?   

        The internal assessments include the following; 

 An annual self-assessment of the 
effectiveness of the audit service using 
the PSIAS; 

 Performance indicators monitored 
monthly 

    

P
age 28



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

15  
  

 Day-to-day monitoring of compliance 
with the Definition of Internal Auditing 
and the Code of Ethics documented 
within the Sections Audit Charter and 
also in the PSIAS. 

External assessments include: 

 A 5 yearly independent assessment of 
compliance to the PSIAS; 

 Annual review of the council’s Annual 
Governance Statement as part of the 
Financial Accounts audit; 

 Regular attendance at the Audit 
Committee with the opportunity to 
meet in private with the Committee; 
and 

 External Auditors and Audit 
Committee Members reviewing and 
challenging internal audit reports. 

   Does the CAE maintain the QAIP?           All aspects of the programme are routinely 
monitored. 

    

  LGAN   If the organisation is a ‘larger relevant body’ in 
England, does it conduct a review of the 
effectiveness of its internal audit at least 
annually, in accordance with the Accounts and 
Audit (England) Regulations 2011 section 6(3)?   

        Self-assessment annually     

 1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme       

 Does the QAIP include both internal and 
external assessments?   

  

      A self- assessment is performed annually.  In 
addition, an external review of the 
effectiveness of the internal audit function is 
carried out every 5 years, in accordance with 
the requirements of the PISIAS.  
Review completed Sept 2017 and another due 
2021. 

    

P
age 29

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS/Wyre%20Review/PSIAS%20Self%20Assessment%20June%202017.pdf


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

16  
  

 1311 Internal Assessments   


       

LGAN   Does the CAE ensure that audit work is allocated 
to staff with the appropriate skills, experience 
and competence?   

 
      This isn’t always possible due to the size of 

the audit team. 
    

   Do internal assessments include ongoing 
monitoring of the internal audit activity such as:   
a) Routine quality monitoring processes?   
b) Periodic assessments for evaluating 

conformance with the PSIAS?     

      a) All audit work is subject to a full 
review before the report is published. 
This includes a full review of working 
papers, evidence found, testing 
completed and validity of 
recommendations. 

b) External review completed September 
2017. 

 

    

  


       

LGAN   Does ongoing performance monitoring include 
comprehensive performance targets?           Service level performance monitoring and 

individual quarterly performance reviews. 
    

LGAN   Are the performance targets developed in 
consultation with appropriate parties and 
included in any service level agreement?   

N/A N/A N/A      

LGAN   Does the CAE measure, monitor and report on 
progress against these targets?           Yes in quarterly audit committee reports.     

LGAN   Does ongoing performance monitoring include 
obtaining stakeholder feedback?           An electronic feedback questionnaire is sent to 

the client at the end of each audit review.  
    

   Are the periodic self-assessments or 
assessments carried out by people external 
to the internal audit activity undertaken by 
those with a sufficient knowledge of 
internal audit practices?   
Sufficiency would require knowledge of the 
PSIAS and the wider guidance available such 
as the Local Government Application Note 
and/or IIA practice advisories, etc.   

  

      The periodic self-assessment is undertaken by 
the CAE. 
 
In order to comply with PSIAS and the Local 
Government Application Note; an external 
assessment must be carried out once every 5 
years. Allerdales assessment took place in 
September 2017 and is due again in 2021. 

    

P
age 30



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

17  
  

 

LGAN   Does the periodic assessment include a review 
of the activity against the risk based plan and the 
achievement of its aims and objectives?   

  
      Annual report reviews activity against planned 

activity. 
    

 1312 External Assessments           

 Has an external assessment been carried out, or 
is planned to be carried out, at least once every 
five years?   

  
      The external assessment complete by Wyre and 

Lancaster City Council September 2017 and is 
due again 2021. 

    

LGAN   Has the CAE considered the pros and cons for 
the different types of external assessment (i.e. 
‘full’ or self-assessment plus ‘independent 
validation’)?   

  

      The proposal from the Lancashire District Chief 
Auditors group which has been agreed by Audit 
Committee is to continue with the self-
assessment and use peer reviews to obtain the 
independent external validation.  
The annual self-assessment will be carried out 
by CAE/ARAO and presented to Audit 
Committee.  

    

   Has the CAE discussed the proposed form of 
the external assessment and the qualifications 
and independence of the assessor or 
assessment team with the board?   

  

     MOU has not been agreed yet but will be 
shared with the committee. 

    

LGAN   Has the CAE agreed the scope of the external 
assessment with an appropriate sponsor, such 
as the chair of the audit committee, the CEO or 
the chief executive?   

  

     MOU agreed via LDCAG and audit committee.     

 Has the CAE agreed the scope of the external 
assessment with the external assessor or 
assessment team?   

  
     These requirements form the basis of the 

‘Memorandum of Understanding’.  
    

 Has the assessor or assessment team 
demonstrated its competence in both areas of 
professional practice of internal auditing and 
the external assessment process?   

  

     These requirements form the basis of the 
‘Memorandum of Understanding’. 

     

P
age 31



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

18  
  

Competence can be determined in the 
following ways:   
a) experience gained in organisations of similar 
size   
b) complexity   
c) sector (i.e. the public sector)   
d) industry (i.e. local government), and   
e) technical experience.   
Note that if an assessment team is used, 
competence needs to be demonstrated across 
the team and not for each individual member.   

 How has the CAE used his or her professional 
judgement to decide whether the assessor or 
assessment team demonstrates sufficient 
competence to carry out the external 
assessment?  

  

     These requirements form the basis of the 
‘Memorandum of Understanding’. 

     

 Does the assessor or assessment team have 
any real or apparent conflicts of interest with 
the organisation? This may include, but is not 
limited to, being a part of or under the control 
of the organisation to which the internal audit 
activity belongs.   

 

     These requirements form the basis of the 
‘Memorandum of Understanding’. 

     

 1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme      

 Has the CAE reported the results of the QAIP to 
senior management and the board? Note that:   
a) the results of both external and periodic 
 internal assessment must be communicated 
 upon completion   
b) the results of ongoing monitoring must be 
 communicated at least annually   
c) the results must include the assessor’s or 
 assessment team’s evaluation with regards 
 to the degree of the internal audit activity’s 
 conformance with the PSIAS.   



















  

      All Audit Committee reports are circulated to 
senior management. 

     

P
age 32



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

19  
  

 Has the CAE included the results of the QAIP 
and progress against any improvement plans in 
the annual report?   

        

The QAIP is reported in the annual report. No 
gaps were highlighted following the assessment 
of the internal audit service that needed 
reporting in the internal audit annual report or 
the Annual Governance Statement 19/20.  

     

 1321 Use of ‘Conforms with the International Standards for the  Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’        

 Has the CAE stated that the internal audit 
activity conforms with the PSIAS only if the 
results of the QAIP support this?   

  
      The self-assessment is reviewed by the Chief 

Officer of Place & Governance and reported to 
the Audit Committee. 

     

 1322 Disclosure of Non-conformance    


       

 Has the CAE reported any instances of non-
conformance with the PSIAS to the board?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no instances of non-conformance 
with the PSIAS.  

     

 Has the CAE considered including any significant 
deviations from the PSIAS in the governance 
statement and has this been evidenced?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no significant deviations that require 
reporting in the AGS. 

     

4   Performance Standards                    

4.1   2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity                    

 Do the results of the internal audit activity’s 
work achieve the purposes and responsibility of 
the activity, as set out in the internal audit 
charter?   

Y   This is demonstrated by achievement of the 
audit plan, the annual audit report, the annual 
governance statement and also feedback from 
clients. 

     

 Does the internal audit activity conform with the 
Definition of Internal Auditing and the Standards   

Y   It can be demonstrated through a number of 
documents, namely; 

 Audit plan 

 Audit Charter / Code of Ethics 

     

P
age 33

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.pdf
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.pdf


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

20  
  

 Audit Reports / working papers 

 Client Feedback 

 Annual audit report 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Do individual internal auditors, who are part of 
the internal audit activity, demonstrate 
conformance with the Code of Ethics and the 
Standards?   

Y   The team have been provided with the Audit 
Charter/Code of Ethics.  Conformance to these 
ethics will also be monitored through the WGLL 
appraisal. 

     

 Does the internal audit activity add value to the 
organisation and its stakeholders by   
a) Providing objective and relevant 
assurance?   
b) Contributing to the effectiveness and 
 efficiency of the governance, risk 
 management and internal control 
 processes?   

Y   Internal audit reports provide objective and 
relevant assurance. If control weaknesses are 
identified, action plans are put in place to 
facilitate improvement. 
 

     

 2010 Planning   


  
 

     

 Has the CAE determined the priorities of the 
internal audit activity in a risk based plan and 
are these priorities consistent with the 
organisation’s goals?     

Y   The audit plan is formulated following 
discussions with Senior Managers, 
consideration of the council’s business plan and 
strategic risk registers. Operational risk 
registers are also reviewed. 

     

 Does the risk-based plan take into account the 
requirement to produce an annual internal 
audit opinion?   

Y   The audit plan is formulated taking into 
consideration the areas on which the (CAE) is 
required to provide assurance in the annual 
audit report. 

     

 Does the risk-based plan take into account the 
organisation’s assurance framework?   

Y   The audit plan considers the council’s risk 
registers, business plan, council plan / 

     

P
age 34



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

21  
  

objectives and also any emerging threats, 
opportunities for fraud etc. 

 Does the risk-based plan incorporate or is it 
linked to a strategic or high level statement of:   
a) How the internal audit service will be 
 delivered?   
b) How the internal audit service will be 
 developed in accordance with the internal 
 audit charter?   
c) How the internal audit service links to 
 organisational objectives and priorities?   

Y   a) Documented in the Audit Charter / Code of 
Ethics. 
b) Development of the Internal Audit Service 
will be identified as part of this self-assessment 
and also at the 5 year external assessment.   
c) The audit plan is formulated after reviewing 
the council’s business plan which lists the key 
objectives and actions for the organisation as a 
whole. 

     

 Does the risk-based plan set out how internal 
audit’s work will identify and address local and 
national issues and risks?   

Y   Corporate risk register includes local and 
national risk agendas. 

     

 In developing the risk-based plan, has the 
CAE taken into account the organisation’s 
risk management framework and relative 
risk maturity of the organisation?   
 

Y   Both strategic and operational risks are 
considered when developing the audit plan. 

     

 If such a risk management framework does not 
exist, has the CAE used his or her judgement of 
risks after input from senior management and 
the board and evidenced this?   

N/A N/A N/A       

LGAN Does the risk-based plan set out the:  
 a)  Audit work to be carried out?   
b) Respective priorities of those pieces of 
 audit work?   
c) Estimated resources needed for the work?   

Y   a) The audit plan lists the nature of the audit 
work.  
b) The plan itself does not list the priority of the 
work to be completed, the strategy details the 
approach adopted on a review level basis. 
c) This is documented in the audit plan. 

     

LGAN   Does the risk-based plan differentiate between 
audit and other types of work?   

Y   Yes all audit work has its own resource budget      

 
  

 
 

        

P
age 35

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/IA%20Strategy%20and%20Audit%20Plan%202018-19.pdf
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/IA%20Strategy%20and%20Audit%20Plan%202018-19.pdf


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

22  
  

LGAN   Is the risk-based plan sufficiently flexible to 
reflect the changing risks and priorities of the 
organisation? 

Y A contingency / investigation resource is set 
aside. The plan is regularly monitored and 
flexed if required. Review planning is 
completed at the time of the review to ensure 
this captures the most up to date risks and 
priorities. 

   Does the CAE review the plan on a regular basis 
and has he or she adjusted the plan when 
necessary in response to changes in the 
organisation’s business, risks, operations, 
programmes, systems and controls?   

Y   The plan is flexible. If any new risks emerge 
during the year or new systems are 
implemented the contingency will be used 
initially. The plan is revised on a 6 monthly 
basis. 

     

 Is the internal audit activity’s plan of 
engagements based on a documented risk 
assessment?   

Y   The process that is undertaken to formulate the 
audit plan is an annual risk assessment. 

     

 Is the risk assessment used to develop the plan 
of engagements undertaken at least annually?   

Y   The risk assessment is completed annually and 
reviewed half yearly.  

     

LGAN   In developing the risk-based plan, has the CAE 

also considered the following:  
 a) Any declarations of interest (for the 

 avoidance for conflicts of interest)?   
b) The requirement to use specialists, e.g. IT or 
 contract and procurement auditors?   
c) Allowing contingency time to undertake ad 
 hoc reviews or fraud investigations as 
 necessary?   
d) The time required to carry out the audit 
 planning process effectively as well as 
 regular reporting to and attendance of the 
 board, the development of the annual 
 report and the CAE opinion?   
 

Y 
 
 
 

N/A 
 
 
 

Y 
 
 

Y 

  a) Audit staff complete an annual declaration of 
interest. There have been no conflicts of 
interests recorded  
b) Skilled team but if we require a specialist 
auditor skill set, an external audit organisation 
would be contacted.   
c) A contingency / investigation resource is set 
aside. 
d) Time to plan each audit is factored into the 
number of days allocated for each piece of 
work. Attendance at Audit Committee, 
development of the annual report and other 
(CAE) activities is listed separately on the audit 
plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

   
 
 
 

 

P
age 36



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

23  
  

 Is the input of senior management and the 
board considered in the risk assessment 
process?   

Y   CAE meets all HofS annually to discuss 

consideration for the audit plan before this is 

agreed. 

     

 Does the CAE identify and consider the 
expectations of senior management, the board 
and other stakeholders for internal audit 
opinion and any other conclusions?   

Y   The annual audit report is scrutinised by the 
Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and is 
also presented to the Audit Committee for 
consideration. The document would be 
amended accordingly, recognising comments 
made, recommendations, changes etc. 
 
In regards to audit report opinions, the overall 
opinions are based on the findings of each 
audit, which are graded using a set framework. 
Auditees can challenge the audit opinion and 
provide reasons in support of why they think 
the opinion should be changed. This will be 
done at the draft stage of the reporting 
process. 

     

 Does the CAE take into consideration any 
proposed consulting engagement’s potential to 
improve the management of risks, to add value 
and to improve the organisation’s operations 
before accepting them?   

Y   All engagements agreed via CAE.      

 Are consulting engagements that have been 
accepted included in the risk based plan?   

Y   Yes for significant consulting engagements.      

 2020 Communication and Approval   


        

 Has the CAE communicated the internal audit 
activity’s plans and resource requirements to 
senior management and the board for review 
and approval?   

Y   The draft audit plan is submitted to the Audit 
Committee and SMT review the report via 
mod.gov agenda management. 

     

P
age 37



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

24  
  

 Has the CAE communicated any significant 
interim changes to the plan and/or resource 
requirements to senior management and the 
board for review and approval, where such 
changes have arisen? 

Y   Revised and approved six monthly. 
 

     

 Has the CAE communicated the impact of any 
resource limitations to senior management and 
the board?   

Y   Resource limitations would be reported to 
senior management and the Audit Committee 
where appropriate as part of the update report.  
 

     

 2030 Resource Management   


        

 Does the risk-based plan explain how internal 
audit’s resource requirements have been 
assessed?   

 Y 
  The plan is based on resources available.      

LGAN   Has the CAE planned the deployment of 
resources, especially the timing of 
engagements, in conjunction with 
management to minimise abortive work 
and time?   

Y   The annual plan is communicated although 
specific timings are not given other than the 
quarter it will be completed. 

      

LGAN   If the CAE believes that the level of agreed 
resources will impact adversely on the 
provision of the internal audit opinion, has he 
or she brought these consequences to the 
attention of the board?   
This may include an imbalance between the 
work plan and resource availability and/or 
other significant matters that jeopardise the 
delivery of the plan or require it to be changed.   

Y   Very small team, where resources are 
insufficient this would be raised with the board. 
External support has been sourced via MIIA. 

     

 2040 Policies and Procedures   


        

   Has the CAE developed and put into place 
policies and procedures to guide the internal 
audit activity?   

Y   Standardised working papers and a reporting 
format has been developed. The council’s 
intranet is used to store key documents that 
guide audit activity i.e. Audit Charter and 

     

P
age 38

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/New%20working%20papers
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/New%20working%20papers


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

25  
  

Integrated Assurance Strategy. The Team have 
been issued with the PSIAS and CIPFA’s 
Application Note. 

LGAN   Has the CAE established policies and 
procedures to guide staff in performing their 
duties in a manner than conforms to the 
PSIAS? Examples include maintaining an IA 
Procedure Manual and/or using electronic 
management systems.   

Y   Internal audit policies and procedures have 
been reviewed to ensure conformity to PSIAS.  

     

LGAN   Are the policies and procedures regularly 
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in 
working practices and standards?   
 

Y   Yes.      

 2050 Coordination   


        

   Does the risk-based plan include the approach 
to using other sources of assurance and any 
work that may be required to place reliance 
upon those sources?   

 Y  Assurance mapping in progress at corporate 
level and will now be incorporated into the 
Managers Assurance Statement process for the 
AGS 19/20, information will be collected six 
monthly and reviewed as part of the appraisal 
process. 

     

LGAN   Has the CAE carried out an assurance mapping 
exercise as part of identifying and determining 
the approach to using other sources of 
assurance?   

 Y  Assurance mapping has been completed at 
service level. The team are looking at 
developing this further corporately. 

     

 Does the CAE share information and coordinate 
activities with other internal and external 
providers of assurance and consulting services?  

Y   External audit share their audit plan at Audit 
Committee. Testing plans are shared upon 
request. 

     

LGAN   Does the CAE meet regularly with the 
nominated external audit representative to 
consult on and coordinate their respective audit 
plans?   

 Y  Meeting as and when required. External Audit 
meet with Section 151 Officer. 

     

P
age 39



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

26  
  

        

 Does the CAE report periodically to senior 
management and the board on the internal 
audit activity’s purpose, authority, 
responsibility and performance relative to its 
plan?   

Y   Annual report sets out purpose, authority and 
responsibility. 

     

 Does the periodic reporting also include 
significant risk exposures and control issues, 
including fraud risks, governance issues and 
other matters needed or requested by senior 
management and the board?   

Y    All considered and included in reporting.      

 Is the frequency and content of such reporting 
determined in discussion with senior 
management and the board and are they 
dependant on the importance of the 
information to be communicated and the 
urgency of the related actions to be taken by 
senior management or the board. 

Y   Reports are communicated and actions are 
graded in order of urgency. High risks are 
escalated to section 151 immediately. 

     

 2070 External Service Provider and Organisational Responsibility for Internal Auditing      

 Where an external internal audit service 
provider acts as the internal audit activity, does 
that provider ensure that the organisation is 
aware that the responsibility for maintaining 
and effective internal audit activity remains 
with the organisation?   

Y   New arrangements in place for support from 
external provider MIIA – responsibility for 
internal audit activity remains with the 
organisation. 

     

4.2   2100 Nature of Work   


        

 Does the internal audit activity evaluate and 
contribute to the improvement of the 
organisation’s governance, risk management 
and internal control processes?   

Y   The audit plan is formulated to ensure it 

contributes to the improvement of the 

organisations governance, risk management 

and internal control processes.  Audit reviews 

     

P
age 40



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

27  
  

will cover the governance and the key risks of 

the service as well as the key controls.  

 Does the internal audit activity evaluate and 
contribute to the improvement of the above 
using a systematic and disciplined approach and 
is this evidenced?   

Y   Working papers, testing and evidence in line 
with standards. 

     

 2110 Governance   


        

 Does the internal audit activity:   
a)         Promote appropriate ethics and values 
 within the organisation?   
b)         Ensure effective organisational 
performance management and accountability?   
c) Communicate risk and control 
information to appropriate areas of the 
organisation?   
d) Coordinate the activities of and 
communicate information among the board, 
external and internal auditors and 
management?   

Y   a) Ethics Audit completed in 2019/20. 
b) Managers are held accountable for actions in 
audit reports and findings from previous audit 
reports are followed up by the audit team.  
They attend Audit Committee when required. 
c) Regular risk workshops take place with Heads 
of Service and Third Tier Managers, these are 
now done by the Hub Manager.  Audit reports 
are issued to the staff responsible for the area 
being audited. 
The Audit Committee and the Executive receive 
regular updates on risk management.  A 
governance assurance meeting is carried out 
prior to the completion of the Annual 
Governance Statement. This is attended by key 
officers of the council. 
d) All audit reports are issued to clients and 
published on the internet available.  External 
Auditor communication is presented to Audit 
Committee.  Chair of Audit Committee updates 
are presented to council on the work of Audit 
Committee 

     

 Does the internal audit activity assess and make 
appropriate recommendations for improving 

Y   Governance issues will be reviewed as part of 
the Audit of risk management, performance is 
included in individual audit planning.  

     

P
age 41

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/AGS%20meeting%20prep.msg
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/AGS%20meeting%20prep.msg
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/reports%20issued%20to%20clients%20email.msg
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Internal%20Audit%20and%20Risk%20Management%20Progress%20Report.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Internal%20Audit%20and%20Risk%20Management%20Progress%20Report.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Internal%20Audit%20and%20Risk%20Management%20Progress%20Report.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

28  
  

the governance process as part of 
accomplishing the above objectives?   

 Has the internal audit activity evaluated the:  
a) design   
b)  implementation, and   
c) effectiveness of the organisation’s ethics-

related objectives, programmes and 
activities?   

Y   The ethical culture survey aims to test 
knowledge on key policies and procedures and 
identify gaps allowing targeted future training. 

     

 Has the internal audit activity assessed whether 
the organisation’s information technology 
governance supports the organisation’s 
strategies and objectives?   

Y   MIIA will be completing the review of this area.      

LGAN   Has the CAE considered the proportionality of 
the amount of work required to assess the 
ethics and information technology governance 
of the organisation when developing the risk-
based plan?   

Y   The number of IT audit days can be adjusted 
accordingly. 
 
 

     

 2120 Risk Management   


        

 Has the internal audit activity evaluated the 
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk 
management processes by determining that:   
a) Organisational objectives support and 
align with the organisation’s mission?   

b) Significant risks are identified and 
assessed?   

c) Appropriate risk responses are 

selected that align risks with the organisation’s 

risk appetite?   

d) Relevant risk information is captured 
and communicated in a timely manner across 
the organisation, thus enabling the staff, 
management and the board to carry out their 
responsibilities?   

Y   a) Documented in the business plan/ service 
plan. 
b) The business plan is used to identify and 
assess significant risks that would prevent the 
organisation from meeting its organisational 
objectives. Risk workshops are held six monthly 
by the hub manager. 
c) Risks above the council’s risk appetite are 
required to have actions to mitigate the risks. 
Risks below the appetite are regularly 
monitored. 
d) The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed at 
SMT monthly. Links are including in the Audit 
Committee report as a regular update. 

     

P
age 42

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Business%20Plan%202015%20-%202019.pdf
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Business%20Plan%202015%20-%202019.pdf
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Business%20Plan%202015-19.pdf
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Strategic%20Risk%20Management%20Report.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Strategic%20Risk%20Action%20Plan%20example.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Strategic%20Risk%20Action%20Plan%20example.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

29  
  

 Has the internal audit activity evaluated the 
risks relating to the organisation’s governance, 
operations and information systems regarding 
the:  

 a) Achievement of the organisation’s strategic 
objectives?   
b) Reliability and integrity of financial and 

operational information?   
c) Effectiveness and efficiency of operations 

and programmes?   
d) Safeguarding of assets?  
e) Compliance with laws, regulations, 
policies, procedures and contracts?   

Y   a) Considered at risk workshops. 
b) Financial and operational information is 
tested for reliability and integrity as part of 
individual audits. 
c) Discussions take place at both strategic and 
operational risk workshops regarding the 
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and 
also considered as part of individual audits.  
d) Discussions take place at both strategic and 
operational risk workshops regarding 
safeguarding the council’s assets and also 
considered as part of individual audits. 
e) Discussions take place at both strategic and 
operational risk workshops regarding 
compliance to law, regulations, policies, 
procedures and contracts. Also considered as 
part of individual audits. 

     

 Has the internal audit activity evaluated the 
potential for fraud and also how the 
organisation itself manages fraud risk?   

Y   Fraud risks are considered during the 
operational and strategic risk workshops. 
The council takes part in the NFI process. 
Fraud risks are included on the organisational 
service risk register. There aren’t any specific 
fraud resources in the organisation.  

     

 Do internal auditors address risk during 
consulting engagements consistently with the 
objectives of the engagement?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently.   

     

 Are internal auditors alert to other significant 
risks when undertaking consulting 
engagements?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently.   

     

P
age 43

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/NFI%20report.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

30  
  

 Do internal auditors successfully avoid 
managing risks themselves, which would in 
effect lead to taking on management 
responsibility, when assisting management in 
establishing or improving risk management 
processes?   

 Y  Internal Auditors do not take ownership for risk 
management. Corporate Risk management 
facilitation no longer sits in the ARA Team and 
is now with the hub manger. 

     

 2130 Control   


        

 Has the internal audit activity evaluated the 
adequacy and effectiveness of controls in the 
organisation’s governance, operations and 
information systems regarding the:   
a) Achievement of the organisation’s strategic 

objectives?   
b) Reliability and integrity of financial and 

operational information?   
c) Effectiveness and efficiency of operations 

and programmes?   
d) Safeguarding of assets?   
e) Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, 

procedures and contracts?   

Y   These areas are covered as part of the audit 
planning process. 
Audits of the risks to key financial systems are 
conducted every year unless there is any major 
changes to controls. 
Strategic objectives / projects are risk managed 
at Head of Service level. 
Feedback as part of the AGS process is used to 
evaluate adequacy of the safeguarding of 
council assets. 
Compliance with laws, regulation, polices, 
procedures and contracts are considered in 
each audit review. 

     

 Do internal auditors utilise knowledge of 
controls gained during consulting engagements 
when evaluating the organisation’s control 
processes?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently, can be requested at any time. 

     

4.3   2200 Engagement Planning   


        

 Do internal auditors develop and document a 
plan for each engagement?   

Y   A brief and system control evaluation is 
completed for every audit. 
 
Brief 
SCE 
 

     

P
age 44

file:///C:/Users/paula.mckenzie/Allerdale%20Borough%20Council/Audit%20Shared%20Drive%20-%20General/Internal%20Audit%20Related/Section%20Administration/Audit%20Procedures/Internal%20Audit%20Procedures/ARA%20Procedures%20current/Appendix%20A%20brief.doc
file:///C:/Users/paula.mckenzie/Allerdale%20Borough%20Council/Audit%20Shared%20Drive%20-%20General/Internal%20Audit%20Related/Section%20Administration/Audit%20Procedures/Internal%20Audit%20Procedures/ARA%20Procedures%20current/Appendix%20B%20SCE%2018.xls


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

31  
  

 Does the engagement plan include the 
engagement’s:  
 a) Objectives?   
b) Scope?   
c) Timing?   
d) Resource allocations?   

Y   

Documented in the brief. 

     

 Do internal auditors consider the following in 
planning an engagement, and is this 
documented:   
a) The objectives of the activity being 
reviewed?   
b) The means by which the activity 
controls its performance?   
c) The significant risks to the activity 
being audited?   
d) The activity’s resources?   
e) The activity’s operations?   
f) The means by which the potential 
impact of risk is kept to an acceptable level?   
g) The adequacy and effectiveness of the 
activity’s governance, risk  management and 
control processes compared to a relevant 
framework or model?   
h) The opportunities for making significant 
improvements to the activity’s governance, risk 
management and control processes?   
 

Y   Each of these criteria are considered at 
planning and detailed in the agreed Audit 
Strategy (agreed at Audit Committee). 

     

 Where an engagement plan has been drawn 
up for an audit to a party outside of the 
organisation, have the internal auditors 
established a written understanding with 
that party about the following: a) 
Objectives?  b) Scope?   
c) The respective responsibilities and other 
expectations of the internal auditors and 

N/A N/A N/A There are no audits performed for parties 
outside of the organisation. 

     

P
age 45



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

32  
  

the outside party (including restrictions on 
distribution of the results of the 
engagement and access to engagement 
records)?   

 For consulting engagements, have 
internal auditors established an 
understanding with the 
engagement clients about the 
following:   
a) Objectives?   
b) Scope?   
C) The respective responsibilities of the internal 
auditors and the client and other client 
expectations?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently but this would be agreed at the time. 

     

 For significant consulting engagements, has this 
understanding been documented?  
 

  

N/A N/A N/A There are no significant consulting 
engagements undertaken presently. 

     

 2210 Engagement Objectives   


        

 Have objectives been agreed for each 
engagement?   

Y   Documented in the brief.      

 Have internal auditors carried out a preliminary 
risk assessment of the activity under review?   

Y   This is completed whilst planning the review. 
Auditors will review previous audits, risk 
registers, business plan and KPIs before 
undertaking each review. Risk profiles may also 
be used to assist in identifying further key risks. 

     

 Do the engagement objectives reflect the results 
of the preliminary risk assessment that has been 
carried out?   
 

Y   The ‘brief’ document identifies the core risks, 
scope and the objective.  

     

 Have internal auditors considered the 
probability of the following, when 

Y   The planning risk assessment will ensure each 
of these are included.  

     

P
age 46



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

33  
  

developing the engagement objectives:  
a) Significant errors?   
b) Fraud?   
c) Non-compliance?   
d) Any other risks?   

 Have internal auditors ascertained whether 
management and/or the board have 
established adequate criteria to evaluate 
and determine whether objectives and 
goals have been accomplished?   

Y   Yes – robust performance management process 
in place and this is reviewed in audit planning. 

     

 If the criteria have been deemed adequate, 
have the internal auditors used the criteria in 
their evaluation of governance, risk 
management and controls?   

Y   Risk management and performance 
management frameworks are used to support 
the evaluation of governance, risk management 
and control. 

     

   If the criteria have been deemed inadequate, 
have the internal auditors worked with 
management and/or the board to develop 
appropriate evaluation criteria?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no instances where the criteria have 
been deemed inadequate.  

     

LGAN   If the value for money criteria have been 
referred to, has the use of all the 
organisation’s main types of resources 
been considered; including money, people 
and assets?   

Y   The ‘value for money’ aspect of any service / 
control is considered during each review. 
Efficiency and the transformation agenda is 
also considered. 
 

     

   Do the objectives set for consulting 
engagements address governance, risk 
management and control processes as agreed 
with the client?   

Y   The job description for the CAE sets out the 
requirements of the role; in particular around 
governance, risk management and internal 
control.  
 
In addition the job description refers to 
compliance with the PSIAs. 

     

   Are the objectives set for consulting 
engagements consistent with the organisation’s 
own values, strategies and objectives?   

Y   
None at present but would follow principles set 
out in the charter. 

     

P
age 47



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

34  
  

 2220 Engagement Scope   


        

 Is the scope that is established for the 
engagement sufficient to satisfy the 
engagement’s objectives?   

Y   Agreed at the start of the audit. If during the 
audit the scope has to be extended to ensure 
the objectives of the audit are met, this is 
agreed with the (CAE) as it is likely to have 
resource implications. 
 

     

 Does the engagement scope include 
consideration of the following relevant 
areas of the organisation:  
 a) Systems?   
b) Records?   
c) Personnel?   
d) Premises?   

Y   The ‘brief’ document identified the systems, 
records, premises and personnel the auditor 
will require assess to. 

     

 Does the engagement scope include 
consideration of the following relevant 
areas under the control of outside parties, 
where appropriate:  
 a) Systems?   
b) Records?   
c) Personnel?   
d) Premises?   

Y   Where required this would be included.      

 Where significant consulting opportunities 
have arisen during an assurance engagement, 
was a specific written understanding as to the 
objectives, scope, respective responsibilities 
and other expectations drawn up?   

N/A N/A N/A 
There have been no such consulting 
opportunities that have arisen during an 
assurance engagement this year.  
 

     

 Where significant consulting opportunities 
have arisen during an assurance engagement, 
were the results of the subsequent 
engagement communicated in accordance 
with the relevant consulting Standards?   

N/A N/A N/A There have been no such consulting 
opportunities that have arisen during an 
assurance engagement this year.  
 

     

P
age 48



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

35  
  

 For a consulting engagement, was the scope of 
the engagement sufficient to address any 
agreed-upon objectives?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently.  

     

 If the internal auditors developed any 
reservations about the scope of a consulting 
engagement while undertaking that 
engagement, did they discuss those 
reservations with the client and therefore 
determine whether or not to continue with 
the engagement?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently.  

     

 During consulting engagements, did internal 
auditors address the controls that are 
consistent with the objectives of those 
engagements?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently.  

     

 During consulting engagements, were internal 
auditors alert to any significant control issues?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently. 

     

 2230 Engagement Resource Allocation            

 Have internal auditors decided upon the 
appropriate and sufficient level of 
resources required to achieve the 
objectives of the engagement based on:  
 a) The nature and complexity of each 
individual engagement?   
b) Any time constraints?   
c) The resources available?   

Y   This is agreed when formulating the annual 
audit plan. The (CAE) is notified of any changes 
to the nature of the work, time constraints and 
resources available once the brief has been 
agreed. Monitored monthly. 

     

 2240 Engagement Work Programme            

 Have internal auditors developed and 
documented work programmes that achieve the 
engagement objectives?   

Y   The auditor will plan the work required to meet 
the objectives of the audit. Standard templates 
are in place for this purpose. 

     

 Do the engagement work programmes include 
the following procedures for:   
a) Identifying information?   
b) Analysing information?   

Y   System control evaluation documents include 
the information required, the testing 
completed, risks, the findings and the overall 
conclusions and recommendations. 

     

P
age 49



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

36  
  

c) Evaluating information?   
d) Documenting information?   

 Were work programmes approved prior to 
implementation for each engagement?   

Y   All senior managers are consulted on a 121 
basis as part of the strategic planning process, a 
work plan is produced and communicated 
before being agreed by the Audit Committee. 

     

 Were any adjustments required to work 
programmes approved promptly?   

Y   Occasionally, work programmes are adjusted to 
take into consideration urgent work or 
investigations  
 

     

4.4   2300 Performing the Engagement   


        

 Have internal auditors carried out the following 
in order to achieve each engagement’s 
objectives:   
a) Identify sufficient information?   
b) Analyse sufficient information?   
c) Evaluate sufficient information?   
d) Document sufficient information?   

Y   A full review of each audit is completed by the 
CAE to ensure that the objectives of the audit 
have been achieved and that there is sufficient 
evidence to support any findings, conclusions 
and the overall opinion. 
Review notes are provided to the lead auditor 
after each review if further work is required or 
certain areas require clarification. 

     

 2310 Identifying In formation   


        

 Have internal auditors identified the following in 
order to achieve each engagement’s objectives:   

a) Sufficient information?   
b) Reliable information?   
c) Relevant information?   
d) Useful information?   

Y   Review notes will show if further information is 
required to support findings or if evidence is 
not relevant or reliable. 

     

 2320 Analysis and Evaluation   


        

   Have internal auditors based their conclusions 
and engagement results on appropriate 
analyses and evaluations?   

Y   Confirmed as part of the review process.  
 

     

P
age 50

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

37  
  

LGAN   Have internal auditors remained alert to the 
possibility of the following:   
a)  intentional wrongdoing   
b) errors and omissions   
c) poor value for money   
d) failure to comply with management 
policy, and   
e) conflicts of interest  

Y   The key risks around these areas are identified 
at the planning stage. 
The ARA Officer and ARA Auditor consider 
these aspects of the control environment 
during each audit review. 

     

 When performing their individual audits, 
and has this been documented?   

Y   Documented in standardised working papers as 
detailed in the procedures. 

     

 2330 Documenting Information   


        

   Have internal auditors documented the relevant 
information required to support engagement 
conclusions and results?   

Y   Standardised reports are used to document 
conclusions and findings along with an action 
plan. This has been streamlined in 2018/19 for 
a more visual report 

     

LGAN   Are working papers sufficiently complete 
and detailed to enable another 
experienced internal auditor with no 
previous connection with the audit to 
ascertain what work was performed, to re-
perform it if necessary and to support the 
conclusions reached?   

Y   A file review is conducted by (CAE) or Officer to 
ensure working papers are referenced correctly 
and the file contains sufficient evidence to 
support any findings and the overall opinion. 

     

   Does the CAE control access to engagement 
records?   

Y   Access rights are documented in the Audit 
Charter. The audit reports state that the 
working papers can be viewed on request. 

     

   Has the CAE obtained the approval of senior 
management and/or legal counsel as 
appropriate before releasing such records to 
external parties?   

N/A N/A N/A Audit files have not been released to external 
parties other than the council’s External 
Auditor and as part of the Peer review process. 

     

   Has the CAE developed and implemented 
retention requirements for all types of 
engagement records?   

Y   Information Asset Registers document the 
required retention periods for all audit records, 
corporate retention schedule adhered to. 

     

P
age 51

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/New%20working%20papers/New%20Report%20Template.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

38  
  

   Are the retention requirements for 
engagement records consistent with the 
organisation’s own guidelines as well as any 
relevant regulatory or other requirements?   

Y   Retention periods are consistent with 
organisational and regularity guidelines. At 
present audit files are retained for 7 years (6 
plus current) in accordance with the 
Government Classification Scheme. 

     

 2340 Engagement Supervision   


        

 Are all engagements properly supervised to 
ensure that objectives are achieved, quality is 
assured and that staff are developed?   

Y   File reviews, feedback and WGLL performance 
appraisals are used to ensure that training or 
development issues are highlighted. 

     

 Is appropriate evidence of supervision 
documented and retained for each 
engagement?   

Y   File reviews and performance and WGLL 
appraisal documents are retained evidencing 
supervision.  

     

4.5   2400 Communicating Results   


        

 Do internal auditors communicate the results 
of engagements?   

Y   Audit reports are issued as appropriate to Key 
Contacts, CEO, Heads of Service. The Audit 
Committee and the External Auditor reviewing 
all audit reports. 

     

 2410 Criteria for Communicating              

 Do the communications of engagement 
results include the following:  a) The 
engagement’s objectives?   
b) The scope of the engagement?   
c) Applicable conclusions?   
d) Recommendations and action plans, if 

appropriate?   

Y   A standardised report format is used ensuring 
that each of the criteria is communicated. 

     

LGAN   Has the internal auditor discussed the 
contents of the draft final report with the 
appropriate levels of management to 
confirm factual accuracy, seek comments 
and confirm the agreed management 
actions?   

Y   An exit meeting is arranged with the relevant 
officers to agree factual accuracy, findings and 
agree actions. 

     

P
age 52

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Retention%20Periods.xlsx
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Retention%20Periods.xlsx
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/New%20working%20papers/New%20Report%20Template.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

39  
  

LGAN   If recommendations and an action plan have 
been included, are recommendations 
prioritised according to risk?   

Y   Recommendations are prioritised as high, 

medium or low and appropriate timescales can 

be agreed with the auditor.  

     

LGAN   If recommendations and an action plan 
have been included, does the 
communication also state agreements 
already reached with management, 
together with appropriate timescales?   

Y   The action plan identified the management 
response and timescales for action.  

     

LGAN   If there are any areas of disagreement 
between the internal auditor and 
management, which cannot be resolved by 
discussion, are these recorded in the action 
plan and the residual risk highlighted?   

Y   The management response would only identify 
areas of disagreement where appropriate. If 
recommendations are not agreed this is also 
included, management can accept risks. 

     

LGAN   Do communications disclose all material facts 
known to them in their audit reports which, if 
not disclosed, could distort their reports or 
conceal unlawful practice, subject to 
confidentiality requirements?   

Y    Material facts are disclosed in line with ethical 
standards set out in the Audit Charter. 

     

LGAN   Do the final communications of engagement 
results contain, where appropriate, the 
internal auditor’s opinions and/or 
conclusions, building up to the annual internal 
audit opinion on the control environment?   

Y   The internal auditor’s opinion and conclusions 
are included in final reports.  

     

   When an opinion or conclusion is issued, are the 
expectations of senior management, the board 
and other stakeholders taken into account?   

Y   The report and findings is agreed with the key 

contacts in the exit meeting.   

     

   When an opinion or conclusion is issued, is it 
supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant and 
useful information?   

Y   Confirmed as part of review process of all audit 
files.  

     

   
Where appropriate, do engagement 
communications acknowledge satisfactory 
performance of the activity in question?   

Y   Good performance and best practise is included 
in the balanced report produced. 

     

P
age 53



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

40  
  

   When engagement results have been 
released to parties outside of the 
organisation, does the communication 
include limitations on the distribution and 
use of the results?   

Y   All audit reports are published on the internet 
unless specific restrictions apply. 

     

LGAN   If the CAE has been required to provide 
assurance to other partnership 
organisations, has he or she also 
demonstrated that their fundamental 
responsibility is to the management of 
the organisation to which they are 
obliged to provide internal audit services?   

N/A N/A N/A Internal Audit have not been asked to provide 
assurance to any partnership organisations.  

     

 2420 Quality of Communications   


        

 Are Communications 
a) Accurate 
b) Objective 
c) Clear 
d) Concise 
e) Constructive 
f) Complete 
g) Timely 

Y   All documents are reviewed by the (CAE) or 
reviewer. Review notes are provided to correct 
any work that does not meet quality 
standards. 
Exit meetings are also used to agree factual 
accuracy of the report and findings. 
Survey Monkey is used to ensure auditees are 
happy with how the audit was conducted. 
The client is provided with an opportunity to 
challenge whether they consider the report to 
be of value as part of the closure meeting and 
again by attending Audit Committee if 
appropriate.  
The timeliness of reports is monitored and this 
is included in individual appraisal objectives.  

     

 2421 Errors and Omissions   


        

 If a final communication has contained a 
significant error or omission, did the CAE 
communicate the corrected information to all 

Y   The exit meeting is designed to identify and 
resolve any significant errors or omissions; 

     

P
age 54

file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc
file://///datasrv01/share/Audit/Audit%201/PSIAS%20reviews/Wyre%20Review/Review%20notes%20example.doc


ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

41  
  

parties who received the original 
communication?   

however the report would be re-issued where 
necessary. 
 

 2430 Use of ‘Conducted in Conformance with 
the International   
Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing’   



        

 Do internal auditors report that engagements 
are ‘conducted in conformance with the PSIAS’ 
only if the results of the QAIP support such a 
statement?   

Y   Annual reporting process includes this.      

 2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non 
conformance   

        

 Where any non-conformance with the PSIAS has 
impacted on a specific engagement, do the 
communication of the results disclose the 
following:   
a) The principle or rule of conduct of the 
Code of Ethics or Standard(s) with which 
full conformance was not achieved?   
b) The reason(s) for non-conformance?   
c) The impact of non-conformance on the 
engagement and the engagement results?   

N/A N/A N/A  No specific engagements have been impacted 
on by non-compliance with the PSIAS. 

     

 2440 Disseminating Results   


        

 Has the CAE determined the circulation of 
audit reports within the organisation, bearing 
in mind confidentiality and legislative 
requirements?   

Y   Audit reports are issued as appropriate to Key 
Contacts, Heads of Service and the Heads of 
Service with CEO deputy responsibilities. With 
the Audit Committee and the External Auditor 
reviewing all audit reports. 

     

 Has the CAE communicated engagement 
results to all appropriate parties?   

Y   Audit reports are issued as appropriate to Key 
Contacts, Heads of Service and the Heads of 
Service with CEO deputy responsibilities. With 

     

P
age 55



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

42  
  

the Audit Committee and the External Auditor 
reviewing all audit reports. 

 Before releasing engagement results to parties 
outside the organisation, did the CAE:   
a) Assess the potential risk to the 

organisation?   
b) Consult with senior management 

and/or legal counsel as appropriate?  
c) Control dissemination by restricting 

the use of the results?   

Y   All reports are published on the internet 
unless confidentiality restrictions apply. 

     

 Where any significant governance, risk 
management and control issues were 
identified during consulting engagements, 
were these communicated to senior 
management and the board?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently.  

     

 2450 Overall Opinion   


        

 Has the CAE delivered an annual internal audit 
opinion?   

Y   Yes this supports the AGS.      

 Does the annual internal audit opinion 
conclude on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework 
of governance, risk management and control?   

Y   Yes reported to audit committee annually.      

 Does the annual internal audit opinion take 
into account the expectations of senior 
management, the board and other 
stakeholders?   

Y   The annual audit report is scrutinised by the 
Head of Financial Services (Section 151 Officer) 
and presented to Audit Committee for 
consideration. 

     

 Is the annual internal audit opinion supported 
by sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful 
information?   

Y   This is based on the work carried out during 
the year and participation in organisational 
activities that lead to governance insight. 

     

 Does the communication identify the following:   
a) The scope of the opinion, including the 
time period to which the opinion relates?   

Y   In providing an overall opinion on the council’s 
system of internal control, it should be noted 
that complete assurance cannot be given. 

     

P
age 56



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

43  
  

b) Any scope limitations?   
c) The consideration of all related 
projects including the reliance on other 
assurance providers?   
d) The risk or control framework or other 
criteria used as a basis for the overall opinion?   

Internal audit can only provide assurance over 
the areas tested.  
 
 

 Where a qualified or unfavourable annual 
internal audit opinion is given, are the reasons 
for that opinion stated?   

N/A N/A N/A Where a qualified or unfavourable opinion was 
given this would be fully explained in the 
annual audit report. 

     

 Has the CAE delivered an annual report that can 
be used by the organisation to inform its 
governance statement?   

Y   Annual opinion is included as part of the AGS.      

  
 
LGAN   
LGAN   
LGAN   
   
LGAN   
LGAN   
   
   
LGAN   
LGAN   
 LGAN   
   

Does the annual report incorporate the 
following:  
 a)     The annual internal audit opinion?   
b) A summary of the work that supports 
the opinion?   
c) A disclosure of any qualifications to 
the opinion?   
d) The reasons for any qualifications to 
the opinion?   
e) A disclosure of any impairments or 
restriction in scope?   
f) A comparison or work actually carried 
out with the work planned?   
g) A statement on conformance with the 
PSIAS?   
h) The results of the QAIP?   
i) Progress against any improvement 
plans resulting from the QAIP?   
j) A summary of the performance of the 
internal audit activity against its performance 
measures and targets?   

 
 

Y 
Y 
 

N/A 
 

N/A 
 

Y 
 

Y 
 

Y 
 

Y 
Y 
 

Y 
 
 

N/A 

  

Annual report is completed in line with the 
requirements of the standards. 

     

P
age 57



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

44  
  

k) Any other issues that the CAE judges is 
relevant to the preparation of the governance 
statement?   

4.6   2500 Monitoring Progress              

 Has the CAE established a process to monitor 
and follow up management actions to ensure 
that they have been effectively implemented 
or that senior management have accepted 
the risk of not taking action?   

Y   Quarterly follow up process in place, 
ownership is placed on responsible officers to 
complete agreed action information. Followed 
up as part of the next review of the area. 

     

 Where issues have arisen during the follow-up 
process, has the CAE considered revising the 
internal audit opinion?   

Y   Where agreed actions have not been 
completed upon follow up this is included in 
the report and communicated to Audit 
Committee. 

     

 Do the results of monitoring management 
actions inform the risk-based planning of future 
audit work?   

Y   Included as part of individual audit planning.       

 Does the internal audit activity monitor the 
results of consulting engagements as agreed 
with the client?   

N/A N/A N/A There are no such engagements undertaken 
presently.  

     

4.7   2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risks   


        

 If the CAE has concluded that management 
has accepted a level of risk that may be 
unacceptable to the organisation, has he or 
she discussed the matter with senior 
management?   

Y   Where management accept risks this is 
documented in the report which is 
communicated to the appropriate to Key 
Contacts, Heads of Service and the Heads of 
Service with CEO deputy responsibilities. With 
the Audit Committee and the External Auditor 
reviewing all audit reports. 

     

 If, after discussion with senior 
management, the CAE continues to 
conclude that the level of risk may be 
unacceptable to the organisation, has he or 

N/A N/A N/A This has not happened to date but would if 
appropriate refer the matter to the Audit 
Committee and CO of Place and Governance. 

     

P
age 58



ALLERDALE SELF ASSESSMENT 2020/21 – APPENDIX ONE Completed by Paula McKenzie ARA Officer 17/12/20 

Ref   Conformance with the Standard   Y   P   N   Evidence Y P N Reviewer’s comments 

 

45  
  

she communicated the situation to the 
board?   

    
    

 

 

  
    

   

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 60



Report Summary for Financial Services Review 19/20 

 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Assurance Substantial Assurance Limited Assurance Minimal Assurance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All areas within the report gained 
an Audit Opinion of Substantial. 
 

 Medium Term Financial 
Plan 

 Budget and Forecasting 

 Fraud 

 Benchmarking 
 

 

  

Comprehensive Substantial Limited Minimal

P
age 61



Guide to the audit assurance opinions  Scope and objective 

Comprehensive 
  

There is a sound system of controls 
designed to meet objectives, manage risks 
and controls are consistently applied in all 
the areas reviewed. 

 Internal audits mission is to enhance and protect organisational 
value and support the Council Plan by providing risk based and 
objective assurance, advice and insight. 
 
The Assurance, Risk and Audit Team endeavour to add value 
and improve Allerdale Borough Council’s operations and help to 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes. 
 
As part of the 2019/20 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan, a review 
has been undertaken of the risk management, controls and 
processes and procedures in place in respect of the Finance 
Service.  The aim of this review is to provide management with 
assurance that controls, governance and risk management 
activities are robust and operating as intended, that mitigating 
actions are in place to manage risks for this area and provide 
recommendations for improvements to add value, if appropriate. 
 
Information and evidence was gathered using a number of 
techniques including interviews with key officers testing, 
observations and questionnaires. 
 
Audit testing is identified in the audit scope and is primarily 
sample based, full coverage of the system and complete 
assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 
 
Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved 
during the course of the review for their help and assistance. 

Substantial There is a good system of controls and 
risks are managed. However, there are 
opportunities for improvement in the 
design or consistency of application that 
will assist in the achievement of objectives 
identified as being at risk in the areas 
reviewed. 

 

 Limited Key controls exist to help achieve 
objectives and manage principle risks. 
However, there are opportunities for 
improvement in the overall control 
environment which would enhance the 
design and application of controls, thereby 
assisting the achievement of objectives 
identified as being at risk in the areas 
reviewed. 

 

Minimal  
 

The absence of basic key controls or the 
inconsistent application of key controls is 
so severe that the audit area is open to 
abuse or error. Risks to objectives are not 
being managed. 

 

    

Agreed Actions  Area of Good Practise 

High Medium Low  The Finance Team have worked together to put some excellent 
training programmes in place to, inform non finance staff, rectify 

0 1 1  

P
age 62



previous issues raised and help manage their KPI’s showing good 
management and resourcefulness. 

 

Assurance 
Area 

Risks/Weaknesses Agreed Actions Recommendation date 
and responsibility 

Medium Term 
Financial Plan 

 
Audit Opinion 

Substantial 
 

The review evidenced that Medium term 
financial planning is an important component 
of the Council’s strategic planning 
framework. This is produced along with the 
council budget.  
 
2019/20 outturns were not available at the 
time of testing or writing of the report to 
compare to the budget, however 2018/19 
outturns confirmed expenditure from the 
capital budget was underspent by £2.55 
million, re-profiling of expenditure to 
subsequent financial years was £2.44 million, 
resulting in a net underspend of £105k and 
the Revenue Outturn for 2018-19 showed the 
revenue budget of £15.084m actual net 
expenditure, including planned contributions 
to reserve of £14.708m, showing a net 
underspend of £376k.  Based on the 
information currently available regarding 
expected levels of funding beyond 2019-20, 
the Council’s general fund balance (managed 
by finance) was expected to fall below the 
minimum balance of £2.7m in 2020-21 and 
would be fully expended in 2021-22. SMT are 
responsible for identifying proposals for 
efficiencies to address any funding gaps 
within the budget, this is done via weekly 
SMT meetings and via the budget setting 
process, however there was an absence of 

  

P
age 63



assurances and agreed ways of working to 
evidence the planned delivery of 
transformation and savings, against unfilled 
vacancy costs, however a Transformation 
Strategy and Plan was currently being 
produced. 
 
Members are involved and updated in 
regards to the MTFP, both Council and 
Executive get regular detailed reports and 
there is also a budget task group established. 

    

Budget and 
Forecasting 

 
Audit Opinion 

Substantial 
 

Allerdale has up to date Financial 
Regulations and a Constitution which 
documents its budgeting and forecasting 
processes including clear roles and 
responsibilities. 
 
Each service area has an assigned financial 
services buddy that they can go to if 
additional help is required. 
 
Reports and forecasting information are 
available on Total for all budget holders to 
review as required.  
 
Consultation with the public and other key 
stakeholders is essential to informing the 
Councils priorities and the financial plans 
which underpin delivery of those priorities, 
including the Councils annual budget. 
Consultations informing the 2019-20 budget 
process comprised: 
 

 the survey of residents undertaken 
during June and July 2018 

Budget and Forecasting Agreed 
Action one, Priority Medium: The 
organisation should identify the 
training needs of individual budget 
holders and implement a formal 
training programme and manual that 
results in budget holders taking full 
responsibility and accountability for 
their budget management. It is 
important that all budget holders 
understand their role in delivering 
the financial and transformational 
strategic priorities of the council  
                                                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Responsibility: Finance 
Business Partner. 
 
Due Date: 31 March 2021 

P
age 64



 a budget consultation focusing on 
specific budget issues carried out 
during December 2018 and January 
2019.  

 
The Council has a statutory responsibility to 
set a balanced budget for each financial 
year. The Council's budget, Efficiency Plan 
and Budget Strategy are easily assessable 
from the Allerdale website.  
 
Allerdale has a well-established governance 
structure, including oversight committees and 
a documented organisational structure with 
clear lines of responsibility.                                                   
Financial regulations require the Section 151 
Officer to report regularly (at least quarterly) 
to Executive, the financial position against 
budget. Executive agendas evidenced this is 
done. 
 
Job descriptions are written by the hiring 
manager, but should the role have 
budgeting/forecasting responsibilities then 
that should be included. Five samples where 
tested, budget responsibility was mentioned 
in all, although very generally i.e. 'effectively 
manage budget' and in one older job 
description it referred to a specific budget 
(maintenance repair budget) and did not 
mention the general service budget. Although 
every job description had an element of 
budgeting and forecasting included in them 
they were not clear and thorough and did not 
relate to each employees responsibilities, 
roles and accountability for 
budgeting/forecasting explicitly. 

P
age 65



 
Consideration should be given to employee 
performance agreements including an 
element related to budgeting and forecasting 
accountabilities. This is not done via 
performance management with individual 
budget holders, however the budget process 
itself allows budget monitoring throughout.  
 
This process should identify any performance 
issues. However a survey sent to budget 
holders evidenced that only four out of 16 
had full understanding of the level of savings 
their area needed to make for 19/20 and 
20/21, three having little understanding and 
one having none. Nine out of 16 fully 
understood the process of Budget setting 
and Forecasting, leaving seven with some to 
no understanding. Seven out of 16 were not 
aware of virement amounts and who should 
authorise them. This evidenced that budget 
monitoring is currently carried out as an 
expectation within itself as opposed to 
contributing to the more effective delivery of 
council outcomes and objectives. 
 
The process for forecasting budgets across 
the Council is an essential risk management 
and governance tool. The audit found that 
forecasting was evidenced across all 
services, however there were control 
weaknesses found that reduced its 
effectiveness i.e. lack of knowledge and 
understanding from budget holders, the 
system was thought to be unnecessarily 
complex and not user friendly. Budget 
holders require the help of finance staff 

P
age 66



monthly which puts a significant resource 
stain on the finance department, generally 
this is to cover the same issues every month.  
 
The new finance system should be procured 
by April 2021 and a project team has been 
established to deliver this. 
 
Corporate Procedures state that an official 
order is always required in respect of goods 
and services. For one off purchases, old 
manual orders are used in an emergency, 
this is to avoid the lengthy process of adding 
a supplier.  
 
Some orders are still being raised after 
ordering goods/services and receiving the 
invoice, there are some cases where 
goods/services have been received prior to 
an order or new supplier form being 
processed both not compliant with financial 
regulations and policy. 
 
There is a KPI for late payments which 
shows one of the reasons for late payments 
is due to invoices being received without an 
order, there are more invoices without orders 
than appear on the KPI data, due to them 
being paid on time however information to 
monitor this isn’t easily available on the 
system therefore the required data could not 
be provided in order for us to test further. 
This shows a system weakness and means 
that the accuracy of committed expenditure 
information on the system was found to be 
open to more error and, therefore, less 
reliable. The audit found this was a 

P
age 67



combination of both a lack of compliance 
culture (i.e. users not complying with the 
rules and agreed processes) and a lack of 
understanding by users of how to apply this 
requirement whilst delivering services which 
are often urgent. Finance hoped the new 
system would mitigate some of these issues. 
 
For accurate planning, the ability to easily 
compare budgets to actual performance is 
important, however there is no platform 
within total that allows budget holders to 
draw in data from other systems and use that 
information for accurate calculations and 
better predictive analysis for the future. Total 
does however allow budget holders to look at 
individual past budgets, to use past 
performance data and allows them to create 
financial and operational models that can 
perform “what-if” scenarios to predict the 
results of business decisions.  
 
A sample test of six virements made within 
the past 12 months found that the amounts 
and codes were accurate, the system 
appeared to be updated within 30 days of the 
virement having been approved however two 
did not specify a date on the form so could 
not be confirmed and one had been 
overlooked so although the need for the 
virement was raised in March 19 the 
virement was not done until August 19. 
Where Total is not updated to reflect 
virements and supplements to the budget in 
a timely manner, there is a risk that budget 
managers are unaware of the true financial 
position of their budget codes. This could 

P
age 68



hinder budget monitoring activities, and 
operations of the Council.  

    

Fraud 
Processes 

 
Audit Opinion  

Substantial 
 
 

 

Clear policy/strategy available and up to date 
that makes it clear that fraud and other 
corrupt practices will not be tolerated. Fraud 
training is utilised on the statutory E-Learning 
platform.  
 
Talks have been ongoing in regards to 
cheque processes and the benefits of the 
council going cheque less. Discussions with 
the Head of Customer Operations confirmed 
that Finance have a project team in place 
mapping out an exit strategy for accepting 
cheques across the board, Allerdale are 
aiming to stop accepting cheques by 1st April 
2020. This is an excellent step in the right 
direction for the Council which will alleviate 
lengthy cheque processes, cheque fraud and 
input errors. 
 
Samples were selected to test for duplicate 
payments, ghost employees and purchase 
orders and invoices out of those tested no 
issues were found. 
 
Samples were selected to test for fraudulent 
suppliers, out of those tested, no issues were 
found though none of the samples tested 
showed the requesters details on the form. 
 
No substantial risks were identified, official 
orders were raised and prescribed controls 
were followed prior to any payment being 
made, system has the facility to store a full 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 69



management trail of information for all 
orders. 

    

Benchmarking 
 

Audit Opinion 
Substantial 

The review evidenced that although some 
services do benchmark for specific 
areas/procurements/fees and charges the 
majority didn’t, however those who didn’t 
expressed interest and thought it would 
benefit their service to do so. 
 
The Head of Strategy Policy and 
Performance owns this corporately on 
performance and strategy supported by The 
Head of Financial Services. There is 
currently no corporate approach or 
expectation for benchmarking work to be 
done within service areas nor was it built into 
objectives.  
 
Substantially less benchmarking work had 
been done on the allocation of resources and 
cost of services.  
 
Although the council have access to a lot of 
information it is not easily extracted and 
therefore not used as it could be.  
 
Benchmarking is seen as beneficial and 
more work is being done around this 
currently. 

Benchmarking Agreed Action 
One, Priority Low:  The opportunity 
to benchmark should be corporately 
encouraged and utilised where 
possible, this should include 
analysis of resources, IT/equipment 
and costs. 

Responsibility: Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance  
 
Due Date:  31 March 2021 

 

 

 

 

P
age 70



Report Summary for Ethics and Culture 19/20 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Assurance Substantial Assurance Limited Assurance Minimal Assurance 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 There are systems and 
processes in place to support 
a culture of transparency and 
openness. 

 There is a robust framework in 
place to deliver the principles 
of good governance. 

 Employees and members are 
aware of their roles and 
responsibilities in relation to 
good governance. 

 Risks and performance are 
managed through robust 
internal control. 

  
 

Comprehensive Substantial Limited Minimal

P
age 71



Guide to the audit assurance opinions  Recommendation Criteria 

Comprehensive  
  

There is a sound system of controls designed to 
meet objectives, manage risks and controls are 
consistently applied in all the areas reviewed. 

  
High 

 
There is a control vulnerability that could result in 
failure to achieve corporate objectives, reputational 
damage, lead to material loss, exposure to serious 
fraud or failure to meet legal or statutory 
requirements. This includes material non-compliance 
with the Constitution, Financial Regulations or Council 
policies and procedures. Managers should address 
high priority recommendations urgently to rectify the 
situation. 

Substantial There is a good system of controls and risks are 
managed. However, there are opportunities for 
improvement in the design or consistency of 
application that will assist in the achievement of 
objectives identified as being at risk in the areas 
reviewed. 

 

 Limited Key controls exist to help achieve objectives and 
manage principle risks. However, there are 
opportunities for improvement in the overall 
control environment which would enhance the 
design and application of controls, thereby 
assisting the achievement of objectives identified 
as being at risk in the areas reviewed. 

  
Medium 

 
The system or procedure lacks adequate control that 
could result in failure to achieve operational 
objectives, non-material loss, or non-compliance with 
departmental operational or financial procedures. This 
would also include minor non-compliance with 
Financial Regulations. Although not fundamental to 
system integrity these risks should be addressed 
promptly as the next priority. 

Minimal  
 

The absence of basic key controls or the 
inconsistent application of key controls is so 
severe that the audit area is open to abuse or 
error. Risks to objectives are not being managed. 

  

Low 
 

To implement this would be good practice to improve 
or enhance the system and the achievement of 
objectives. Several low risks in combination may give 
rise to concern.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 72



 

Scope and Objective 

Internal audits mission is to enhance and protect organisational value and support the Council Strategy by providing risk based and objective 

assurance, advice and insight.  

The Assurance, Risk and Audit Team endeavour to add value and improve Allerdale Borough Council’s operations and help to accomplish its 

objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 

processes. 

As part of the 2019/20 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan, a review has been undertaken of the controls and procedures in place in respect of 

Culture and Ethics. The aim of this review is to provide management with assurance that controls, governance and risk management activities 

are robust and operating as intended, that mitigating actions are in place to manage the key corporate risks for this area as recorded by the risk 

owner and provide recommendations for improvements to add value, if appropriate.  

Information and evidence was gathered using a number of techniques and as part of this review, an employee survey was undertaken to obtain 

their view on elements of the ethical framework at Allerdale Borough Council; 59 responded, representing 25% of the Council’s workforce. 

As audit work is controlled by the areas identified in the audit scope and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and complete 

assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 

Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved during the course of the review for their help and assistance. 

 

 

Recommendations  Area(s) for improvement 

High Medium Low 
4 areas for improvement were suggested 

0 1 1 

 

 

 

 

P
age 73



 

Assurance Area Risks/Weaknesses Action plans/Recommendations 

There are systems and 
processes in place to 
support a culture of 
transparency and 
openness   

Audit Opinion: Substantial 

 

 

The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct, based 
on the 7 principles of public life and the behaviours 
attributed to it, which all Members are expected to 
follow. Members are provided with a copy of the Code 
of Conduct and guidance on how to follow it as part of 
the comprehensive induction programme however in 
2019, only 25 of the 49 Members attended the 
training sessions. The requirement to read the 
Employees Code of Conduct is stated in employees’ 
contract of employment and new starter induction 
packs and Officers are expected to read the code as 
part of their mandatory induction.  
 
There is no evidence that either Members or Officers 
reread the Code of Conduct regularly. The Standards 
Committee is responsible for promoting and 
maintaining ethical standards in public life and there 
is a formal process in place for raising an issue with 
clear and simple guidance on the Allerdale website. 
The Code of Conduct complaints log was inspected 
and showed that there had been 41 complaints 
received in the last 12 months. 
 
There is an established process in place for raising 
awareness in respect of issues relating to governance 
and the 2019-20 Culture and Ethics survey reported 
that 93% of those who responded, knew what action 
they should take if they became aware on any 
unethical activity. Although planned, there is currently 
no e-learning to entrench understanding of the 
Whistleblowing process. 
 
The Gifts and Hospitality Register is easily accessible 
on the intranet and on the Allerdale website although 
the register on the website is not up to date. A review 
identified 17 entries this financial year compared to 11 

Area of improvement 1  
 
The respective Code of Conducts should be reread 
annually by both elected Members and Officers and a 
system of evidencing this should be considered. 
 
Area of improvement 2 
COMPLETED 
 
The Communications and Marketing team to upload 
the latest version of the Whistleblowing Policy to the 
Allerdale Website. 
 
Response – The latest version of the 
Whistleblowing Policy was uploaded to the 
Allerdale website 24th March 2020 
 
Area of Improvement 3 
 
The Allerdale website should be updated to show the 
latest version of the Gifts and Hospitality Register. 
 
 

P
age 74



in 2018-19 and all of these entries were by officers; it 
was noted however, that the limit for Members 
registering a gift/hospitability was raised to £50.  
 
A Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and 
other Registerable Interests form is completed by all 
elected members and held on the Allerdale website 
and the Intranet.  Testing identified that there 
appeared to be some minor discrepancies between 
the Allerdale forms and those completed for Cumbria 
County Council for two Councillors and one 
Councillors form was dated 2017. Related Party 
Annual returns were inspected for three senior 
officers and it was noted that one of these was not 
signed nor dated. 

There is a robust 
framework in place to 
deliver the principles of 
good governance 

Audit Opinion: Substantial 

 

Allerdale Borough Council has a strong governance 
framework in place. The Constitution sets out the 
statutory framework under which the Council operates 
and how decisions are made and the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance describes the arrangements in 
place to ensure that the Council conducts its business 
in accordance with the law and proper standards. 
 
The Governance Group meets throughout the year to 
gather evidence and assurances to demonstrate how 
the Council satisfies the requirements of the 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
Frameworks. As part of this process Tier Three 
Managers complete managers’ assurance statements 
to evidence awareness and compliance to the 
council’s policies and procedures, however a review 
of the return showed that only one service area was 
fully completed. The process was previously owned 
by Heads of Service and all Tier Three Managers are 
new to this approach, and this still needs to be 
embedded. 
 
56% of officers who participated in the Culture and 
Ethics survey, answered that they agreed that the 

Agreed Action 1, Priority Low 
Responsibility: Head of Strategy, Policy and 
Performance – 31 March 2021 
All Managers to complete Managers Assurance 
Statements as a requirement of “What Great Looks 
Like”. 
 
Area of improvement 4 
COMPLETED 
 
Performance reports for quarter’s 2 and 3 should be 
uploaded to the Allerdale website as part of the 
transparency in reporting how the Council is 
performing against the key priorities and objectives. 
 
Response – Quarters 2 and 3 Performance 
Reports were uploaded to the Allerdale website 
during the review 
 

P
age 75



Senior Management Team demonstrated high ethical 
standards, this was an increase from 48.15% 
reported in 2018-19.  
 
The Council has clearly defined its outcomes in terms 
of sustainable economic, social and environmental 
benefits and it actively looks to engage stakeholders 
and uses many forums such as social media, 
meetings, consultations and surveys. There have 
been significant environmental and social agreements 
made in 2019-20 including supporting local spending, 
compliance with the Modern Slavery Act and ways to 
reduce climate change.   
 
The Council demonstrates good practices in respect 
of transparency and accountability. Monthly spending, 
annual accounts and performance reports are 
published on the Allerdale website as well as the 
Forward Plan and previous decisions. The 
Assurance, Risk and Audit Service conforms to the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS), 
evidenced through the annual self-assessment 
against the PSIAS standards, Assurance Risk Charter 
and an independent Peer Review. 

Employees and Members 
are aware of their roles 
and responsibilities in 
relation to good 
governance 

Audit Opinion:  
Substantial 

 

Considerable work has been undertaken by the 
Senior Management Team in raising awareness of 
the Council’s vision and aims and the values and 
behaviours expected of employees and the Chief 
Executive consistently reinforces this message to all 
staff through his quarterly Employee briefings. 

The Organisational Development Strategy has now 
been replaced with the Target Operating Model and 
the People Plan. The Councils Values and 
Behaviours are incorporated in the What Great Look 
Like (WGLL) appraisal scheme, reinforcing the 
standards and behaviours expected from employees. 
Although the WGLL process has been designed 
to provide the opportunity to measure employee 
performance, provide constructive feedback and 

Agreed Action 2, Priority Medium 
Responsibility: Chief Executive – 31 March 2021 
 
Tier Three Managers to ensure that quality appraisals 
are undertaken and completed within organisational 
standards and timeframes.  
 

 

P
age 76



praise and discuss future development, completion 
rates have been low, dropping to 66% for 
quarter three 

Risks and performance 
are managed through 
robust internal control  

Audit Opinion:        
Substantial 

The Organisational Development Strategy has now 
been replaced with the Target Operating Model and 
The People Plan, this identified the changes and 
reasons required to create the Council’s desired 
workplace culture. Through the vision, aims and 
strategic objectives, the Council has clearly set out 
the expected high ethical values and behaviours of 
staff and the priority that managers should lead by 
example to manage these risks and fulfil the Council 
Strategy.   
   
The corporate risk for cultural and organisational 
change is managed through the Corporate Risk 
Register and is reviewed regularly by the Senior 
Management Team.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 78



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Allerdale Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2021

February 2021

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 6



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at February 2021 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Sector Update 6

Value for Money Update 14

2

P
age 80



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in 
delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 
The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority;

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to 
consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes); 
and

• an overview of the changes to our Value for Money Work for the 2020/21 year.

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated 
to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications www.grantthornton.co.uk ..

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 
receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 
Engagement Manager./

Introduction

3

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead

T:  0141 223 0891 or 0788 045 6154
E: gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com

Richard Anderson

Engagement Manager

T: 0141 223 0753 or 07920 021291
E: richard.j.anderson@uk.gt.com

P
age 81



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Progress at February 2021

4

Financial Statements Audit
We completed our 2019/20 audit on 30th November 2020.

We are now beginning our planning processes for the 2020/21 audit. 

Our formal work will begin later in the year and in the meantime we will:

• continue to have regular discussions with management to inform our risk 
assessment for the 2020/21 financial and value for money audits

• review board papers and latest financial and operational performance 
reports

• consider any reports from regulators regarding your clinical / operational 
effectiveness. 

We expect to issue our audit plan summarising our approach to key risks on 
the audit in March.

Meetings

We continue to meet with Management and Finance Officers to discuss 
emerging developments and to ensure the audit process is smooth and 
effective. We met with your Chief Executive in January 2021 to discuss the 
Council’s strategic priorities and plans.

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members 
and publications to support the Council. Your officers are invited to our 
Financial Reporting Workshop in February, which will help  ensure that 
members of your Finance Team are up to date with the latest financial 
reporting requirements for local authority accounts.

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the Council are 
set out in our Sector Update section of this report.

Value for Money
On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a new Code of Audit Practice 
which comes into effect from audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised 
approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM) 

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s new approach:

• A new set of key criteria, covering financial sustainability, governance and 
improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness

• More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a 
commentary on arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the current 
‘reporting by exception’ approach

• The replacement of the binary (qualified / unqualified) approach to VFM 
conclusions, with far more sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as 
key recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified 
during the audit.

Further detail on the NAO’s revised approach to VFM work can be found between 
pages 18 and 26 of this report and here: https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-
practice/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2019/12/AGN-03-Auditors-Work-on-Value-for-
Money-Arrangements.pdf

Due to the change in approach, a fee variation will be needed for 2020-21 and your 
Engagement Team should be in touch shortly to discuss this.

The new Code of Audit Practice issued by the NAO can be found here: 
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-
content/uploads/sites/29/2020/01/Code_of_audit_practice_2020.pdf

P
age 82



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Audit Deliverables

5

2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our 2019/20 work. February 2021 In progress

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2020/21.

March  2021 Not yet due

Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed approach in 
order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2020-21 financial statements and a Conclusion on the Council’s Value 
for Money arrangements.

March 2021 Not yet due

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment within 
our Progress Report.

TBC Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported on completion of our audit

TBC Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

TBC Not yet due

Auditor’s Annual Report

The key output from local audit work on arrangements to secure VFM is an annual commentary on 
arrangements, which will be published as part of the Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR). The final version of the 
AAR will be published at the same time as the Auditors Report

TBC Not yet due

P
age 83



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Councils continue to try to achieve greater 
efficiency in the delivery of public services, whilst 
facing the challenges to address rising demand, 
ongoing budget pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of emerging 
national issues and developments to support you. We cover areas which 
may have an impact on your organisation, the wider local government 
sector and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the detailed 
report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research on 
service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest research 
publications in this update. We also include areas of potential interest to 
start conversations within the organisation and with audit committee 
members, as well as any accounting and regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

6

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 
government sections on the Grant Thornton website by clicking on the logos 
below:

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 
specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

Public Sector
Local 

government

P
age 84



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Guide for Audit and Risk Committees on 
Financial Reporting and Management during 
COVID-19 – National Audit Office

In June the National Audit Office (NAO) published a guide 
that “aims to help audit and risk committee members 
discharge their responsibilities and to examine the impacts on 
their organisations of the COVID-19 outbreak. It is part of a 
programme of work undertaken by the NAO to support 
Parliament in its scrutiny of the UK government’s response to 
COVID-19.”
The NAO report notes “Audit and risk committees are integral to the scrutiny and challenge 
process. They advise boards and accounting officers on matters of financial accountability, 
assurance and governance, and can support organisations, providing expert challenge, 
helping organisations focus on what is important, and how best to manage risk.

Each organisation will have existing risk management processes in place, but risk appetite 
may have changed as a result of COVID-19, for the organisation to operate effectively and 
respond in a timely manner. This may result in a weakening of controls in some areas, 
increasing the likelihood of other risks occurring. Organisations will need to consider how 
long this change in risk appetite is sustainable for.”

The NAO comment “This guide aims to help audit and risk committee members discharge 
their responsibilities in several different areas, and to examine the impacts on their 
organisations of the COVID-19 outbreak, including on:

• annual reports;

• financial reporting;

• the control environment; and

• regularity of expenditure.

In each section of the guide we have set out some questions to help audit and risk 
committee members to understand and challenge activities. Each section can be used on its 
own, although we would recommend that audit and risk committee members consider the 
whole guide, as the questions in other sections may be interrelated. Each individual section 
has the questions at the end, but for ease of use all the questions are included in Appendix 
One.

The guide may also be used as organisations and audit and risk committees consider 
reporting in the 2020-21 period.”

7

The full report can be obtained from the NAO website:

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/guidance-for-audit-and-risk-committees-on-
financial-reporting-and-management-during-covid-19/

P
age 85



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

The Redmond Review

The Independent Review into the Oversight of Local Audit 
and the Transparency of Local Authority Financial Reporting –
“The Redmond Review” was published on 8 September.
The review has examined the effectiveness of local audit and its ability to demonstrate 
accountability for audit performance to the public. It also considered whether the current 
means of reporting the Authority’s annual accounts enables the public to understand this 
financial information and receive the appropriate assurance that the finances of the authority 
are sound.

The Review received 156 responses to the Calls for Views and carried out more than 100 
interviews. The Review notes “A regular occurrence in the responses to the calls for views 
suggests that the current fee structure does not enable auditors to fulfil the role in an entirely 
satisfactory way. To address this concern an increase in fees must be a consideration. With 
40% of audits failing to meet the required deadline for report in 2018/19, this signals a 
serious weakness in the ability of auditors to comply with their contractual obligations. The 
current deadline should be reviewed. A revised date of 30 September gathered considerable 
support amongst respondents who expressed concern about this current problem. This only 
in part addresses the quality problem. The underlying feature of the existing framework is the 
absence of a body to coordinate all stages of the audit process.”

Key recommendations in the report include:

• A new regulator - the Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR) to replace the 
Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC) role and that of Public Sector Auditor Appointments  
(PSAA)

• Scope to revise fees - the current fee structure for local audit be revised to ensure that 
adequate resources are deployed to meet the full extent of local audit requirements

• Move back to a September deadline for Local Authorities - the deadline for publishing 
audited local authority accounts be revisited with a view to extending it to 30 September 
from 31 July each year

• Accounts simplification - CIPFA/LASAAC be required to review the statutory accounts to 
determine whether there is scope to simplify the presentation of local authority accounts.

The OLAR would manage, oversee and regulate local audit with the following key 
responsibilities: 

• procurement of local audit contracts; 

• producing annual reports summarising the state of local audit; 

• management of local audit contracts; 

• monitoring and review of local audit performance; 

• determining the code of local audit practice; and 

• regulating the local audit sector. 

The current roles and responsibilities relating to local audit discharged by the Public Sector 
Audit Appointments (PSAA); Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
(ICAEW); FRC; and The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) to be transferred to the 
OLAR. 

How you can respond to the Review

One of the recommendations was for local authorities to implement:

The governance arrangements within local authorities be reviewed by local councils with the 
purpose of: 

• an annual report being submitted to Full Council by the external auditor; 

• consideration being given to the appointment of at least one independent member, 
suitably qualified, to the Audit Committee; and 

• formalising the facility for the CEO, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
to meet with the Key Audit Partner at least annually.

Whilst Redmond requires legislation, in practice the second and third bullets are things which 
authorities could start doing now.

8

The full report can be obtained from the gov.uk website:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-
audit-independent-review

P
age 86



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Code of Audit Practice and revised approach to 
Value for Money audit work - National Audit Office

On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a new 
Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from audit 
year 2020/21. The most significant change in the Code is 
the introduction of a new ‘Auditor’s Annual Report’, which 
brings together the results of all the auditor’s work across 
the year. The Code also introduced a revised approach to 
the audit of Value for Money.
Value for Money - Key changes

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s new approach:

• A new set of key criteria, covering governance, financial sustainability and improvements 
in economy, efficiency and effectiveness

• More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a commentary on 
arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by exception’ 
approach

• The replacement of the binary (qualified / unqualified) approach to VfM conclusions, with 
far more sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as key recommendations on 
any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit.

The new approach to VfM re-focuses the work of local auditors to: 

• Promote more timely reporting of significant issues to local bodies
• Provide more meaningful and more accessible annual reporting on VfM arrangements 

issues in key areas
• Provide a sharper focus on reporting in the key areas of financial sustainability, 

governance, and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
• Provide clearer recommendations to help local bodies improve their arrangements. 

Implications of the changes

Grant Thornton very much welcomes the changes, which will support auditors in undertaking 
and reporting on work which is more meaningful, and makes impact with audited bodies and 
the public. We agree with the move away from a binary conclusion, and with the replacement 
of the Annual Audit Letter with the new Annual Auditor’s Report. The changes will help pave 
the way for a new relationship between auditors and audited bodies which is based around 
constructive challenge and a drive for improvement.

The following are the main implications in terms of audit delivery:

• The Auditor’s Annual Report will need to be published at the same time as the Auditor’s 
Report on the Financial Statements. 

• Where auditors identify weaknesses in Value for Money arrangements, there will be 
increased reporting requirements on the audit team. We envisage that across the 
country, auditors will be identifying more significant weaknesses and consequently 
making an increased number of recommendations (in place of what was a qualified Value 
for Money conclusion). We will be working closely with the NAO and the other audit firms 
to ensure consistency of application of the new guidance.  

• The new approach will also potentially be more challenging, as well as rewarding, for 
audited bodies involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the 
reporting, and the planning and risk assessment which underpins it, will require more 
audit time, delivered through  a richer skill mix than in previous years. 

9

The Code can be accessed here:
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-
content/uploads/sites/29/2020/01/Code_of_audit_practice_2020.pdf

P
age 87



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Future Procurement and Market Supply Options 
Review – Public Sector Audit Appointments

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) has commissioned 
an independent review of the sustainability of the local 
government audit market. The review was undertaken by an 
independent consultancy, Touchstone Renard. 
PSAA note that the report “draws on the views of audit firms active in the local authority 
market as well as others that are not. In doing so it identifies a number of distinctive 
challenges in the current local audit market. In particular it highlights the unprecedented 
scrutiny and significant regulatory pressure on the auditing profession; the challenges of a 
demanding timetable which expects publication of audited accounts by 31 July each year; 
and the impact of austerity on local public bodies and its effect on both the complexity of the 
issues auditors face and the capacity of local finance teams”. 

Key findings in the report include:

• A lack of experienced local authority auditors as the main threat to the future 
sustainability of the market.

• It will be difficult to bring the non-approved firms into the market.

• Of the nine approved firms, only five have current contracts with PSAA.

• Almost all of the approved firms have reservations about remaining in the market.

• Firms perceive that that their risks have increased since bids were submitted for the 
current contracts.

• The timing of local audits is problematic. 

Key issues for the next procurement round include:

• Number of lots and lot sizes.

• Lot composition.

• Length of contracts.

• Price:quality ratio.

The report notes that “PSAA will need to balance the views of the firms with wider 
considerations including the needs of audited bodies and the requirement to appoint an 
auditor to every individual body opting in to its collective scheme”.

10

The full report can be obtained from the PSAA website:

https://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/PSAA-Future-
Procurement-and-Market-Supply-Options-Review.pdf

P
age 88



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Kickstarting Housing – Grant Thornton and 
Localis

In July Grant Thornton Head of Local Government, Paul 
Dossett, wrote an essay, included as part of a collection in the 
Localis report – “Building for renewal: kickstarting the C19 
housing recovery”. 
Paul asked “So how do we address “the housing crisis” in the context of an existential threat 
to the British economy?  Just as importantly, how do we ensure our key workers, our new 
heroes of the Thursday night applause, are front and centre of such a response.   Paul 
suggested that the housing response needs to move away from the piecemeal towards a 
comprehensive and strategic response, with five key pillars with the key worker demographic 
at its heart: 

• Public housebuilding. This will involve more borrowing, but we need a bold and ambitious 
target to build at least one million new public sector properties at social rents by 2025. This 
should involve a comprehensive and deep partnership between Homes England and local 
authorities and underpinned by a need to minimise the carbon footprint.

• Private sector housing needs a rocket boost with massive Government supported 
investment in modern methods of construction and consideration of required workforce 
needed to meet capacity.  This needs to go hand in hand with a major recruitment drive into 
all facets of the housing industries. This should include national and local training initiatives 
to support workers form the service sectors who are very likely to lose their jobs because of 
the pandemic.

• Strategic authorities based on existing local government footprints across the country 
to remove the inconsistent patchwork quilt of current arrangements so that there is 
consistency between local, county and national strategic priorities. They should be legally 
tasked and funded for development of comprehensive infrastructure plans to support 
housing initiatives in their areas with a strong remit for improving public transport, supporting 
green energy initiatives and developing public realms which create a sense of community 
and belonging. 

• Building on existing initiatives to improve security of tenure and quality of 
accommodation, a new partnership is needed between landlord and tenants that provides a 
consistent national/regional footing to ensure that housing is a shared community 
responsibility. This should, like the response to the pandemic, be part of a shared community 
narrative based on state, business and local people.

• Putting key workers at the heart of the Housing strategy.  The country appears to have 
discovered the importance of key workers. The people that keep the country running and 
whose contribution is never usually recognised financially or in terms of social esteem.  
There are several existing key worker accommodation initiatives, but they are local and 
piecemeal. We need a comprehensive strategy which focuses on key worker needs, 
including quality of accommodation, affordable mortgages/ rents, proximity to workplaces 
and above all , a sense of priority on the housing ladder for those who keep the country 
running in good times and bad and are the best of us in every sense. 

Paul concluded “Housing is a basic need and if key workers feel valued in their place in 
housing priorities, we will have made a giant step forward. 

Key workers are not the only group in need of help of course. Utilising the momentum behind 
keyworkers that their role in COVID-19 has brought into focus, could help kickstart housing 
initiatives that help all those in need.”

11

The full report can be obtained from the 
Grant Thornton website:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insi
ghts/homes-fit-for-heroes-affordable-
housing-for-all/

P
age 89



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Local government reorganisation in two-tier shire 
counties – County Councils’ Network

The County Councils’ Network (CCN) has published new 
independent evidence on the implications of local government 
reorganisation in two-tier shire counties ahead of the 
publication of the government’s ‘devolution and local 
recovery’ white paper.
The report identifies considerations relating to:

• the costs associated with disaggregation;

• what this might mean in terms of risk and resilience of service provision;

• how service performance might be impacted;

• what it could mean for the place agenda; and

• issues arising from the response to Covid-19.

The report also sets out the financial implications of four unitary scenarios:

• Establishing one unitary authority in every two-tier area in England.

• Establishing two new unitary authorities in every two-tier area in England.

• Establishing three new unitary authorities in every two-tier area in England.

• Establishing two new unitary authorities and a children’s trust in every two-tier  area in 
England.

CNN note “With councils in shire counties facing billions in rising costs for care services, 
alongside financial deficits caused by the Coronavirus pandemic, the study from 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) shows merging district and county councils in each area 
into a single unitary council could save £2.94bn over five years nationally.”

CNN go on to comment “The report concludes a single unitary in each area would reduce 
complexity and give communities a single unified voice to government. It would provide a 
clear point of contact for residents, businesses and a platform to ‘maximise’ the benefits of 
strategic economic growth and housing policy; integral to the ‘levelling-up’ agenda and 
securing devolution.

However, the report shows replacing county and districts with two unitary authorities in each 
area would reduce the financial benefit by two-thirds to £1bn over five years, with three 
unitary authorities delivering a net loss of £340m over the same period. A fourth scenario of 
a two-unitary and children’s trust model in each county would deliver a net five year saving of 
£269m.

Alongside a minimum £1.9bn in additional costs from splitting county council services, the 
report outlines the establishment of multiple unitary authorities in each area creates the risk 
of disruption to the safeguarding of vulnerable children, while ‘instability’ in care markets 
could impact on the quality and availability of support packages and care home placements.”

12

The full report can be obtained from the County Councils’ Network website:

https://www.countycouncilsnetwork.org.uk/new-analysis-reveals-that-single-
unitary-councils-could-deliver-3bn-saving-over-five-years-and-maximise-the-
benefits-of-economic-growth-and-housing-policy/

P
age 90



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Local government reorganisation in two-tier shire 
counties – District Councils’ Network

The District Councils’ Network (DCN) a report ahead of the 
publication of the government’s ‘devolution and local 
recovery’ white paper.
The report comments “Devolution should back the success of districts in delivery. It should 
not distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery capacity through forcing 
reorganisation into a less local, less agile, less responsive local government pushed by 
interests wanting county unitary councils everywhere. Local governance is a local matter, 
places must be free to decide how to organise services and to progress any kind of reform 
only where there is significant local agreement.”

The report calls for the Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper to:

1) Deliver genuine devolution that moves quickly to drive local growth 

2) Retain and build on the local capacity to deliver 

3) Empower real-world economies 

4) Continue to anchor local government in local communities 

5) Reject false arguments that bigger local government is better or cheaper local 
government 

6) Support strategic leadership across wider functional economic areas 

7) Introduce an upper limit for the size of new unitary councils, in line with the principle of 
electoral equality

The report includes a number of case studies in each of these areas.

13

The full report can be obtained from the District Councils’ Network website:

https://districtcouncils.info/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/DCN-Report-Sept-1.pdf

P
age 91



Value for money
Update for Audit Committee 
on new arrangements 2020-21P

age 92



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

15

How have the NAO changed value for money work ?

P
age 93



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

16

How is value for money work changing ?

More 
meaningful 
and timely 
reporting

Maximising 
the value 

from 
auditor’s 

work

More 
freedom to 
reflect local 

context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

P
age 94



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

The three criteria have changed…

17

Informed 
decision making

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working with 
partners and 
other third 

parties

Governance

Financial 
sustainability

Improving 
economy, 

efficiency and 
effectiveness

P
age 95



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

A key change in reporting…

18

Annual Audit 
Letter

Auditor’s Annual 
Report

P
age 96



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

So what is in an Auditor’s Annual Report ?

19

Commentary on 
arrangements Recommendations

Progress in 
implementing 

recommendations

Use of additional 
powers

Opinion on the 
financial 

statements

P
age 97



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

Recommendations

20

Action to be 
taken to 

address the 
weakness

Impact of 
weakness 

on the 
audited 

body

Evidence 
on which 
auditor’s 
view is 
based

Nature of 
weakness

P
age 98



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2021

Public

21

Practical implications 

The new approach is more complex, more involved and will lead to better quality working achieving more impact. Before 
beginning work, we will discuss with you:

• Timing 

• Resourcing 

• Fees 

P
age 99



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 100


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 31 December 2020
	Self assessment 20_21 Appendix One
	Final Report finance Appendix Two
	Ethics and Culture_Final_Report Appendix Three

	6 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

